Public Document Pack
INHS @DKFDRDSH]RE healthwatch

iy _ Oxiorasiire COUNTY COUNCIL Oxfordshire
Clinical Commissioning Group

To: Members of the Health Improvement Partnership Board

Notice of a Meeting of the Health Improvement
Partnership Board

Thursday, 18 November 2021 at2.00 pm

virtual meeting - live stream link https://oxon.cc/hib18112021

Vo

Yvonne Rees
Chief Executive Date Not Specified

Contact Officer: Julieta Estremadoyro, Partnership Board Officer
Tel: (01865) 326464; Email:
commissioning.partnershipboard@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Membership

Chair — Councillor Louise Upton and Councillor Maggie Filipova-Rivers
Vice Chair - District

Board Members:

Amier Al Agab Healthwatch Oxfordshire Ambassador

Ansaf Azhar Director of Public Health, Oxfordshire County Council

Det Chief Insp Jonathan Capps | Thames Valley Police

Dr David Chapman Clinical Chair of Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group

ClIr Merilyn Davies District Council Director Representative

Daniella Granito District Partnership Liaison

Diane Hedges Chief Operating Officer, Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning
Group

Clir Mark Lygo Cabinet Member for Public Health & Equalities, Oxfordshire
County Council

Clir Andrew McHugh Cherwell District Council

CliIr Helen Pighills Vale of White Horse District Council

Rosie Rowe Head of Healthy Place Shaping, Public Health, Oxfordshire
County Council

County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk Media Enquiries 01865 323870



http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/
https://oxon.cc/hib18112021

Declarations of Interest

The duty to declare.....

Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to

(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-
election or re-appointment), or

(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or

(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted
member has a disclosable pecuniary interest.

Whose Interests must be included?

The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted

member of the authority, or

e those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member;

e those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife

e those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil
partners.

(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the

interest).

What if | remember that | have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting?.

The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all
meetings, to facilitate this.

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed.

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room.

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or
disadvantage on any person including yourself” or “You must not place yourself in situations
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned.....".

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt
about your approach.

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:
Employment (includes“any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit
or gain”.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities.

For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines.
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or contact
Glenn Watson on 07776 997946 or glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the
document.

If you have any specialrequirements (suchas alargeprintversion of
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer
named onthe frontpage,but pleasegiveas muchnotice as possible
beforethe meeting.

‘é}gg recycled paper ‘é]}?é\


http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/
mailto:glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk

AGENDA

1. Welcome by Chairman
Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments
Declaration of Interest - see guidance note opposite

Petitions and Public Address

o + N

Notice of Any Other Business
14:03 to 14:05

To enable members of the Board to give notice of any urgent matters to be raised at the
end of the meeting.

6. Note of Decision of Last Meeting

14:05 to 14:10
5 minutes

To approve the Note of Decisions of the meeting held on 9" September and to receive
information arising from them.

7. COVID- 19 update: impactanalysis

14:10 to 14:20
10 minutes

Presented by Ansaf Azhar, Director of Public Health, Oxfordshire County Council
To update members of the public on the COVID-19 situation in the county.
8. PerformanceReport

14:20 to 14:35
15 minutes

Presented by Ansaf Azhar, Director of Public Health, Oxfordshire County Council.

To monitor progress and agreed outcome measures.

9. MentalHealth & Wellbeing: Update from Suicide Prevention Multi
Agency Group

14:35 to 14:55
20 minutes

‘é}gg recycled paper é]}fé,\



-2-

Presented by Jack Gooding, Senior Public Health Principal, Oxfordshire County Council
and Oxfordshire Mind

To report on the progress of the Suicide Multi Agency Group.

BREAK
14:55 to 15:00
5 minutes

10. Reportfrom the Healthwatch Oxfordshire Ambassador

15:00 to 15:10
10 minutes

Presented by Amier Al Agab, Healthwatch Oxfordshire Ambassador
To receive updates from Healthwatch Oxfordshire on topics relevant to the Board
11. Active Travel Programme

15:10 to 15:30
20 minutes

Presented by Sarah Riches Payne, Public Health Registrar, Oxfordshire County Council
To provide an update on the Active Travel Programme in Oxfordshire
12. Domestic Abuse Support-Safer Accommodation

15:30 to 15:35
5 minutes

Presented by Kate Holburn, Head of Public Health Programmes, Oxfordshire County
Council

To update the Board in the Safer Accomodation element of the work on Domestic Abuse.

13. Any other business



Clinical Commissioning Group

Agenda Iltem 6

m OXFORDSHIRE
Oxfordshire htalthw tCh

'COUNTY COUNCIL .
Oxfordshire

HEALTHIMPROVEMENT PARTNERSHIP BOARD

OUTCOMES of the meeting held on commencing at 9" September at 14:00

Present:
Board
members

In attendance

Officer:

Apologies:

Absent;:

ClIr Louise Upton, Oxford City Council (Chair)

Clir Maggie Filipova-River, South Oxfordshire District Council (Vice -
Chair)

Clir Andrew McHugh, Cherwell District Council

Clir Mark Lygo — Oxfordshire County Council Cabinet

Ansaf Azhar, Director of Public Health, Oxfordshire County Council
ClIr Helen Pighills, Vale of White Horse District Council

Clir Merilyn Davies, West Oxfordshire District Council

Rosie Rowe, Head of Healthy Place Shaping, Public Health,
Oxfordshire County Council

Daniella Granito, District Partnership Liaison, Oxford City Council
Amier Al Agab, Oxfordshire Healthwatch Ambassador

Adam Briggs, Public Health, Oxfordshire County Council

David Munday, Consultant in Public Health, Oxfordshire County
Council

Julie Dandridge, Deputy Director, Head of Primary Care, Oxfordshire
Clinical Commissioning Group

Dr Meena Paul, Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group

Shelley Ghazi, Policy and Partnerships Officer, Oxford City Council
Derys Pragnell, Consultant in Public Health, Oxfordshire County
Council

Kate Arbuthnott, Public Health, Oxfordshire County Council

Julieta Estremadoyro, Oxfordshire County Council

Diane Hedges, Chief Operating Officer, Oxfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group

Dr David Chapman, Clinical Chair, Oxfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group

Julie Dandridge and Dr Meenu Paul represented OCCG at the
meeting

Jonathan Capps, Detective Chief Inspector, Thames Valley Police

Page 1



ITEM

1. Welcome
Clir Upton welcomed to the meeting:

- ClIr Mark Lygo, Cabinet Member for Public Health & Equality, Oxfordshire
County Council Cabinet

- Julie Dandridge and Dr Meena Paul representing the Oxfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group

Attending for first time:

David Munday, Consultant in Public Health who is taking the role of lead officer
from Rosie Rowe

Derys Pragnell and Kat Arbuthnott from Public Health, Oxfordshire County Council

Cllr Upton introduced herself and ClIr Filipova-Rivers as the new Chair and Vice-
Chair of the HIB, elected by leaders of all the councils.

She also reminded members of the remit of the HIB and highlighted the role and
focus of the Board on prevention on its three main priorities: Mental Wellbeing,
Obesity and Smoking Cessation/Prevention.

2. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments
None received.

3. Declarations of Interest

Clir McHugh is the Chairman of the Tobacco Control Alliance

4. Petitions and Public Address
There were none

($2]

.Notice of Any Other Business

None

6. Note of Decisions of Last Meeting

The notes of the meeting held on 27t May 2021 were signed off as a true and accurate
record.

Action Update:

Diane Hedge (OCCQG) to provide a report on the application of the

HW report, in particular in relation to promoting access to and the role of
pharmacies, for the next meeting.

Julie Dandridge updated that community pharmacies are becoming much more part of the
Primary Care Networks (PCNs) and are being embedded in service provision at local level,
helping to understand how they fitin the health care system and the services they can offer
to people over and above the GP. There is a good progress on this.

Page 2




Ansaf Azhar updated that Public Health are carrying out a pharmaceutical needs
assessment which will report to the Health and Wellbeing Board, broadly considering the
needs of community pharmacies.

7. Director of Public Health Update on COVID 19
Ansaf Azhar, Director of Public Health, provided a verbal update.

He announced that the way the update will be presented at future meetings will change. As
from the next meeting, the focus will be on the direction of travel rather than providing
detailed data. It will focus on the recovery actions regarding the Board priority areas (Mental
Wellbeing, Obesity and Smoking Cessation/Prevention).

The situation of COVID 19 cases in the county is reflecting what we are seeing nationally,
a gradual increase with variability among districts

(Up to date figures at https://mwww.oxfordshire.gov.uk/council/coronavirus-covid-
19/controlling-local-coronavirus-outbreaks/latest-figures

Last year rates by this time were well below these but we were escalating actions. At
present, rates are higher than last year but we are deescalating, e.g., those who are fully
vaccinated do not need to self-isolate. This is because of the availability of the vaccine.

Still, we all have responsibilities in our setting and need to follow good habits that we have
learnt are effective such as handwashing and mask wearing. COVID-19 cases will rise
because everything is open and in winter rates are likely to further increase. The efficacy
of the vaccine is not 100% so itis necessary to continue taking precautions.

Key message: We are moving away from government led prevention to each setting and
individual taking responsibility.

Those fully vaccinated should continue with asymptomatic testing. The PCR testing will
continue, and people are encouraged to take the test regularly to stop the chain of
transmission.

The City has come out of enhanced response measures in mid-August as it has been
successful in containing the rise of cases. Thanks to all partners for actively and decisively
containing the pandemic in the city.

Comments/Questions:

Hospitalisation and/or serious infections in fully vaccinated people

At the moment there are 50 hospitalisations for COVID 19 made up of people who received
only the first dose and those not vaccinated. Analysing data in that small sample would
give inaccurate result. This is replicated at national level.

When most of the population is fully vaccinated, hospital beds would be occupied by the
small percentage of fully vaccinated people that did not build enough resistance to the
disease (Clir McHugh/Ansaf Azhar)

Page 3



https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/council/coronavirus-covid-19/controlling-local-coronavirus-outbreaks/latest-figures
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/council/coronavirus-covid-19/controlling-local-coronavirus-outbreaks/latest-figures

ClIr Lygo and Ansaf Azhar thanked all the agencies and people involved in the COVID 19
responses in the county.

8. Performance Report — Effect of COVID 19
Ansaf Azhar referred to the document Performance Report (page 11 in the agenda pack)

The performance report covers the overarching priorities in the full life cycle starting from
Start Well to Aging Well indicators.

There are six indicators in Living Well that are red; this is quite concerning but the data is
reporting Q3 of 2021 during the lock down when services were still halted. There are
discussions ongoing happening on how those services will restart and how effective the
restart would be to minimise the long impact of Covid.

David Munday added that the intention is to review the performance report so that it focuses
more on these priorities with the potential for a deep dive on these three areas (Mental
Wellbeing, Obesity and Smoking Cessation/Prevention). The new dashboard will be
brought to the Board for discussion.

Comments/questions:

Mental Health - CAMHS

Mental Health is an important community issue and the long waiting times for CAMHS an
indicator of the dire need for this service. However, there needs to be more upstream
interventions that prevent young people from reaching CAMHS services. Improving
CAMHS performance is being discussed at different levels and in other boards (Clir
McHugh/Ansaf Azhar)

Single Homelessness Pathway

There has been progress in moving people into independent tenancies. Having a roof over
their heads would significantly improve the physical and mental health of these people (Clir
Upton)

Women's Health Indicators
There are three red indicators affecting women’s health issues. We need to be aware of
this and consider this in future performance reports (Veronica Barry/Ansaf Azhar)

David Munday requested members to put forward suggestion regarding the performance
report and what would be important to be reflected there.

9. Report from Healthwatch Oxfordshire Ambassador

Amier Al Agab went through the paper Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to Health
Improvement Partnership Board (page 17 in the agenda pack)

Amier highlighted the role of Oxford Community Action is one BAME organisation in Oxford
providing valuable feedback that informed the reports that are presented to the Board. He
also acknowledged the commitment of all members and partners agencies around the table

Page 4 ‘




that are implementing the suggestions in the work they do and listening to the voice of the
communities in the county.

He also highlighted the 28 reports available to read at the Healthwatch Oxfordshire website

Comments/questions:

Clir Upton congratulated Healthwatch Oxfordshire on their annual report that shows the
breadth of the activities undertaken and the concerns that are brought to the Board most of
which are heard and followed up.

GP waiting times
Members of the Board discussed the possible cause of the significant problem with GP
waiting times:

e Problems with staffing - GP and admin staff leaving practices (Cllr Upton)

e Backlog from the lockdown period that is appearing now, putting pressure on
practices to deal with people who sat on their problems during the lock down period
and are presenting now. (Julie Dandridge/Meena Paul)

¢ Phone conversations are more now than in normal times, problems that could be
resolved through pharmacies are brought to GP practices. There is an educational
piece to be done there (Meena Paul)

e OCCG is monitoring the number of appointment available and trying to bring them
to a pre-pandemic levels and even higher. GP practices have implemented new
ways of working and phone consultations are combined with face-to-face
appointments. (Julie Dandridge)

e Healthwatch Oxfordshire is looking at GP websites and looking how to better
streamline information and in general to map services so people have more
guidelines on which services are more convenient to use, reducing the levels of
frustration (Meena Paul)

e There is another piece of work being carried out by Healthwatch looking at the
barrier to access GP and NHS services that will be concluded by November. There
are people giving up in the NHS because the problems of getting through on the
phone, some of them struggling with the English language (Veronica Barry)

e Some BAME people suffering from mental health issues are ashamed to ask for
help because of language barriers. Some of these people have been living in UK
for a long time and fear being judged on their lack of English language competency.
There is work going on with the communities to try to address these issues. (Amier
Al Agab)

10.Tobacco Control plans for 2021/22

Adam Briggs and Ansaf Azhar commented on the report Oxfordshire Tobacco Control
Alliance Action Plan, 2021/22 (page 55 in the agenda pack).

Ansaf emphasised the importance of this area of work as a key priority area for the Board.
The progress on this preventative agenda is based on a partnership approach so it is
relevant to everybody in the Board. Smoking remains the single biggest risk of early
mortality in the country. Approximately 80,000 people die every year due to smoke related
health issues, this is a higher number than people dying from COVID 19.

Page 5




Adam went through the Action Plan in Appendix 1 (page 57 agenda pack) that is going to
be pursued with partners in the following months and represents key opportunities. He
mentioned as an example NHS colleagues who are embedding their smoke free ambition
within their organisation with their own staff.

Adam spoke about the pillars that were presented in the past report to the Board. This can
be found here:

https://mycouncil.oxfords hire.gov.uk/documents/s55840/Item%2010%20-
9%2020210512%20HIB%20Paper%20Tobacco%20Control.pdf

Comments/guestions:

ClIr Filipova-River congratulated Adam for the Action Plan that clearly points out what district
councils and other stakeholders can do. This is really appreciated as it informs ideas for
future implementation and funding.

Implementation in different settings

e Districts can look at the opportunity of training for staff based at Leisure Centres
and play areas (ClIr Filipova-River/Adrian Briggs)

¢ Implementation of more banners in school gates with key messages. This is not in
the action plan but could be incorporated (Cllr Lygo/Adrian Briggs)

e More work to be done with sporting associations (Clir Lygo)

e Working with our own staff on smoking cessation, removing spaces for smoking
outside premises (ClIr Lygo)

E-cigarettes, vaping

Role of e-cigarettes to help quit smoking. How relevant is providing an outdoor space for
staff to use e-cigarettes. Vaping is a small part of the strategy to support people to reduce
the harm of smoking tobacco (Clir Davies/Adam Briggs)

E-cigarette high street shops are closing and moving to online trade. How can these be
regulated e.g. the amount of nicotine that is allowed to be vaped? There has been work
with shops to make them aware of the regulations and there is intention to work with the
online regulators too (Clir Pighills/Adam Briggs)

Groups with high prevalence of smoking
There is intervention work to be done and develop in those hard-to-reach groups such as
people with mental health problems and manual workers (Ansaf Azhar)

Adam asked members if they have further questions or suggestions for the strategy please
let him know.

11. Mental Health and Mental Wellbeing: Mental Wellbeing Needs
Assessment

Kat Arbuthnot referred to the paper Report on the Mental Wellbeing Needs Assessment
(page 61 agenda pack)

Page 6



https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s55840/Item%2010%20-%2020210512%20HIB%20Paper%20Tobacco%20Control.pdf
https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/s55840/Item%2010%20-%2020210512%20HIB%20Paper%20Tobacco%20Control.pdf

She went through the following presentation:

@

HIB_Sept_21_MWBN
A_PH.pptx

The assessment has been carried out mainly through the COVID pandemic and has been
influenced and informed by this situation.

Comments/Questions

Mental Health problems in adolescents

There is an epidemic of mental health problems in adolescents because of the lockdown.
There are some Covid related funds that can be used to implement some measures. At the
moment, all the strategies are developed around schools. (Clir McHugh)

This is an important item in the agenda of the Health and Wellbeing Board. Implementing
actions upstream to reduce demand, preventing children arriving at the point of having to
be seen by CAMHS whose waiting list is approximately two years. Key interventions and
discussions are happening with the relevant partners (Ansaf Azhar)

Mental Health in rural areas

Reports on the issues are not considering the difference between urban and rural settings.
West Oxfordshire do not have adequate provision in terms of mental health services and it
is a real worry particularly in relation to young people. In rural areas problems of lack of
social connections and isolation are stronger. Is it possible to develop a similar plan of action
as the Tobacco Strategy? (Clir Davies/ClIr Filipova-River)

Developing a strategy
It is very important to get community insight in order to develop those recommendations
and feed into a Wellbeing/Mental Health strategy (Amier Al Agab/Ansaf Azhar

How are we tracking the progress in tackling mental health issues? — Very important to
develop a way of monitoring the progress and embed it into the performance report (David
Munday)

12.Domestic Abuse Strategy

Kate Holburn went through the document Strategic Update for Domestic Abuse (page 69 in
the agenda pack

Comments/Questions:

CliIr Upton congratulated Kate on the fact that a need assessment is being undertaken - this
IS great news.

Page 7




What is the level of funding that is being provided? The Ministry of Housing, Communities
& Local Government has provided £1.1 million additional funding this year that we did not
have in previous years. (Val Messenger/Kate Holburn)

This money is partly funding a consultant to implement the recent domestic abuse review
in the City and also a Domestic Abuse worker embedded in the housing team at the city. It
also will fund the training of housing staff in domestic abuse in other districts (Clir Upton/ClIr
Davies)

Important to use the money to close the gap of provision of Domestic Abuse services in
rural areas (ClIr Lygo)

Kate informed the meeting that she sits on the Oxford Community Safety Partnerships that

has links into the strategic board. Clir Pighills chairs the community safety partnership in
her district.

Ansaf Azhar highlighted the importance of completing a comprehensive needs assessment
as an important piece of work to get things rights and develop the right strategy.

13.A0B
None was raised

Page 8




Agenda Item 8

Health Improvement Board
18 November 2021

PerformanceReport
Background

1. The Health Improvement Board is expected to have oversight and of performance on four
priorities within Oxfordshire’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2018-2023, and ensure
appropriate action is taken by partner organisations to deliver the priorities and measures, on
behalf of the Health and Wellbeing Board.

2. The indicators are grouped into the overarching priorities of:
e A good start in life
e Living well
e Ageing well

Current Performance

3. Atable showing the agreed measures under each priority, expected performance and the
latest performance is attached.

4. Forall indicators itis clear which quarter's data is being reported on and whether itis new data
or the same as that presented to the last meeting (if the metric is yet to be updated).

5. Some areas of work will be monitored through achievement of milestones. These are set out
on page 5 of this report. For Q1 and Q2 achievement progress is shown for Whole Systems
Approach to Obesity and Mental Wellbeing.

Of the 21 indicators reported in this paper:
Six indicators are green

Four indicators are amber
Six indicators are red:
e 2.16 Reduce the percentage of the population aged 16+ who are inactive (less than 30
mins/week moderate intensity activity)
e 2.17 Increase the number of smoking quitters per 100,000 smokers in the adult
population
e 2.18 Increase the level of flu immunisation for at risk groups under 65 years
e 2.21i Increase the level of Cervical Screening (Percentage of the eligible population
women aged 25-49) screened in the last 3.5 years)
e 2.21ii Increase the level of Cervical Screening (Percentage of the eligible population
women aged 50-64) screened in the last 5.5 years)
e 3.18 Increase the level of Breast Screening - Percentage of eligible population (women
aged 50-70) screened in the last three years (coverage)

NB- please note that due to the timing of data updates, none of these red indicators are based on
new performance data, rather it is the same data as that presented at the last HIB.

6. A new “deep dive” performance report is included at the end of this document. As discussed at
the HIB meeting in September, we are including this to ensure the Board are sighted on
performance against agreed priority areas. This time it relates to Mental Wellbeing, and at
subsequent meetings it will focus on other priority areas (such as physical activity or tobacco
control). Within the deep dive report, we have two sections. Firstly, metrics from the Public

Page 9



Health Outcome Framework (PHOF) relevant to mental wellbeing. Secondly, we have included
some summary metrics from the recent mental wellbeing health needs assessment that was
presented to the HIB in September 2021. This second part will not be available for all future
deep dive reports as they won't necessarily have a concurrent needs assessment that has

been undertaken.

Page 10



Health Improvement Board Performance Indicators 2021/22

New Data Change
since last Target Reporting since last
Measure (frequency) HIB? 2021/22 date Latest RAG reporting Notes
period
Whilst rates of smoking at time of delivery are lower
than the national average, this masks significant ward-
;.12 Reduce the lewvel of smoking N 7% Q4 20/21 6.9% G A level variation. The NHS Long T_erm Plan focus on
in pregnancy (Quarterly) tobacco control, as well as ongoing OCC work to
support pregnant women to quit, offers an opportunity
to accelerate the rate of decline
The pandemic impacted on all childhood immunisation
uptake mainly due to GP practices being (wrongly)
1.13 Increase the lewvels of presumed closed. Howewer uptake is now stable.
Measles, Mumps and Rubella Y 95%* Q1 21/22 93.7% A There is ongoing work on increasing MMR uptake
immunisations dose 1 (Quarterly) across the Thames Valley, focusing in particular on
L areas with low uptake of preschool and MMR booster
= vaccines.
2 | 1.14 Increase the lewels of
& | Measles, Mumps and Rubella Y 95%* Q1 21/22 92.4% A v Same as 1.13.
9 | immunisations dose 2 (Quarterly)
% Obesity prevalence differs by District ranging from
§9 5.5% in Vale of White Horse to 7.9% in South
% 1.15 Reduce the lewvels of Oxfordshire.
= children obese in reception class N 7% 2019/20 6.7% A 20/21 data is due on 16t November. We expect this to
=| (Annual) show a further increase in lewvels of childhood obesity in
line with national trends during COVID.
Obesity prevalence differs by District ranging from
13.6% in West Oxfordshire to 19.9% in Cherwell.
1.16 Reduce the lewels of 20/21 data is due on 16" November. We expect this to
children obese in year 6 (Annual) N 16% 2019720 16.1% A A show a further increase in lewvels of childhood obesity in
line with national trends during COVID.
Physical activity has decreased nationally during the
COVID year. It ranges in Oxfordshire from 17%
2.16 Reduqe the Percentage of inactive in Oxford to 28% inactive in Cherwell.
__ | the population aged 16+ who are Cherwell 28.4%
@ | inactive (less than 30 mins / N 18.6% May-21 22.4% A '
= | week moderate intensity activity) Oxford 17.1%
o South Oxon 20.8%
£ | (Annual) VOWH 23.8%
'5 West Oxon 22.1%
>1146 This was the first quarter of a new Senice Provider
5;Zklizzri]i?tfeiepglrjT(t))grogz) N per Q1 2021/22 678 N/A delivering against a new Sernvice Model, it remains
' 100,000 projected that the annual rate of >1146 will be




smokers in the adult population
(Quarterly)

2.18 Increase the level of flu

achieved. Due to the change in Model, comparisons in
quitters per 100,000 in previous years is not directly
applicable.

Uptake in this cohort increased from previous years,
and is above the national average. There is ongoing
focused work for the 2021/22 season to increase

uptake, including continued commissioning of renal

years (cowerage) (Quarterly)

*National target

immunisation for at risk groups 75%* Sep 2020 to 58.9% N/A senices in the OUH to administer vaccine. In addition,

under 65 years (Cumulative for Feb 2021 ) L .

Flu season only) therg s & new initiative by NHSE in Thames Valley to
provide eligibility cards to allow patients to demonstrate
eligibility for the flu vaccine at a provider of their choice
without having to disclose their medical history.

2.19 % of the eligible population The last 18 months have been extremely challenging

ilgHeg |ff|0-74 years invited for an N/A Q2 21/22 69.6% for Primary Care settings due to the pandemic. The

ealth Check (Q1 2017/18 NHS Health Check programme had to be paused for
to Q4 2021/22) (Quarterly) several months in 2020/21 in order for primary care to
- . focus on responding to COVID-19. Going forward we

s'gze% Z:’O?;Zhsei'rglkileecgaﬂgagon are in the process of identifying other senice delivery

NHS Health Check (Q1 2017/18 N/A Q2 21/22 32.6% options to support Primary Care settings to address the
current NHS Health Check backlog caused by COVID-

| to Q4 2021/22) (Quarterly) 10.

g 2.21i Increase the lewel of Due to the pandemic all screening programmes had to
(D | Cenvical Screening (Percentage be paused for several months in 2020. In the recovery
| of the eligible population women 80%* Q4 20/21 67.1% phase all programmes undertook targeted work to

N)| aged 25-49) screened in the last maximise uptake. Work is now underway to support

3.5 years) (Quarterly) programme resilience during the winter period.

2.21ii Increase the level of

Cenical Screening (Percentage

of the eligible population women 80%* Q4 20/21 75.3% v Same as 2.21i

aged 50-64) screened in the last

5.5 years (Quarterly)

3.16 Maintain the lewel of flu Sep 2020 to Notable increase in uptake among this cohort.

immunisations for the over 65s 75%* ng 2021 84.4% N/A Efforts ongoing aiming for a high uptake for the

(Cumulative for Flu season only) 21/22 season.

_ | 3.17 Increase the percentage of

T | those sent Bowel Screening 60%

< | packs who will complete and (Accepta Q3 20/21 70.3% v Same as 2.21i
o | return them (aged 60-74 years) ble 52%)*

S | (Quarterly)

<CED 3.18 increase the lewvel of Breast

Screening - Percentage of 80%

eligible population (women aged (Accepta Q4 19/20 55.4% v Same as 2.21i

50-70) screened in the last three ble 70%)*




Health Improvement Board Process Measures 2021/22

Measure Quarter 1 Quarter 2
Process Progress Rag Process Progress Rag
Expand the network group for | Network group expanded. Expand the network group Further stakeholders identified. WSA wider
the whole systems approach for the whole systems network event planned for Jan 2022 to share
to healthy weight (Phase 1) approach to healthy weight work of the group to date and engage new
(Phase 1) members.
Building a local picture (Phase | pevelopment of Causal maps Building a local picture Causal maps completed. A complete healthy
2) and mapping the local from the themed network (Phase 2) and mapping the | Weight systems map for Oxfordshire .
system (Phase 3) workshops to inform the action local system (Phase 3) (incorporating all individual causal maps) in
Whole plan underway. Z)evelopment to inform the action plan (Phase
Systems G ' G
nggoez?g, Healthy Weight Community Comm|s§|or?ed. a;]year!ong d Part 2 of the Healthy Weight Story Map (focus
Insight Project 2021-22 community Insight project, data on the food environment) in progress and due
analysis completed to identify for publication Nov 2021
initial target areas and population :
groups. Report due Mar 2022. ) ) o
o Healthy Weight Community Worked with local partners to build on existing
jab) Insight Project 2021-22 insight. Community engagement underway
% September — February 2022.
H
w
Suicide Prevention Multi- MAG meeting held May 2021. Suicide Prevention Multi- Next MAG meeting 04/11/2021 due to review
Agency Group (MAG) active Continued to work with a wide Agency Group (MAG) active the action plan and outcomes framework with
and delivering to the strategy range of partners to share good and delivering to the strategy | partners.
and year 2 action plan. practice and identify and year 2 action plan.
opportunities for joint working to
prevent suicide and self-harm in
the community
Mental _ _ G Mental Health Prever_mon Con_cordat meeting heId_September 2021. G
Wellbeing Mental Health Prevention Concordat meeting held June Concordat Partnership Reviewed mental wellbeing needs

Concordat Partnership
delivering the framework and
Year 2 priorities.

2021. Comms campaigns
completed and mental health
and suicide prevention training
continued.

Reviewed draft mental wellbeing
needs assessment to inform
priorities and action plan.

delivering the framework and
Year 2 priorities.

assessment with partners to plan year 2
priorities, including outcomes framework.
Evaluation of Year 1 partnership approach
presented to the group.




Mental Wellbeing Detailed Performance Report

episodes for self-harm per
100,000 population. (Annual)

through universal and targeted
support to people in crisis.

RAG
: South (against
Measure (frequency) Oxfordshire East England Date England Commentary Data Notes
value)
Percentage of Mothers who Mothers who are identified as
received a Maternal Mood Review needing additional support are 9504 is a
(by 0-5 Health Visiting Service) in 95,79 i 9504* Q1 G referred on for Listening Visits, Tar Zt ot
line with the local pathway by the 70 0 2021/22 Knowing me - Knowing You groups, En gljan d value
time the infant is aged 8 weeks. Perinatal Mental Health support 9
(Quarterly) Services.
S“;?ﬂ;?'ma‘(’{g'sﬂ‘;”eﬁ) a result of This is a priority within the Children
05| rate of finished admission 169.9 197.8 | 2198 | 2019/20 J and Young People's Plan led by the | PHE Fingertips
Q| episodes for self-harm per Children's Trustand is part of the data.
9| 100000 population. (Annual) Suicide and Self-Harm Strategy.
B ’ '
=
S
n
?&?_ﬂ;?lmaglngl_sfg%nez;iss) acrﬁjs(jlgt of This is a priority within the Children
rate of finished admission 72255 7952 | 6647 | 2019/20 A | @nd Young People's Plan led by the | PHE Fingertips
: Children's Trustand is part of the data.
episodes for self-harm per Suicide and Self-harm Strate
100,000 population. (Annual) ay-
Hospital admissions as a result of o -
sl har (202 yers) i o oot 20 | oy Fgoris
rate of finished admission 497.5 531.9 | 4337 | 2019/20 A » SUPROTLIS P gertip

data.




School Readiness: percentage of
children achieving a good level of

This a priority for the Oxfordshire
School Readiness and Lifelong

injury of undetermined intent per
100,000 population (Annual)

Group

0, 0, ()

development at the end of 73.5% 74.6% 71.8% 2018/19 Strategic Plan and led by a multi- PHOF BO2a

Reception (Annual). agency task and finish group

School Readiness: percentage of e . .

children with free sfhool megl This |nd|c_tor IS & priority f(_)r the

status achieving a good level of 49.9% 55.4% | 56.5% | 2018/19 Slf‘flordsr's"te fcho%'lRead'gﬁ’sj Eg”d PHOF B02a

development at the end of lielong Strategic Flan and led by a

Reception (Annual) multi-agency task and finish group

Gap in the employment rate for

those in contact with secondary . .

mental health services and the 74.7 70.6 672 | 2019/20 This 1s forming part ofthe COVID | poF Boge
0| overall employment rate, yp 9
g percentage point gap (Annual)
o) : . .

Percentage of people in 83.70% 79.60% | 76.20% 2019/20 This is formlng_part of the COVID PHOE B08d
G employment recovery planning

Self-reported wellbeing - people This is a priority for the Mental Health

with a Ir())w haDDINess Scorpe P 7.0% 7.9% 8.7% 2019/20 Concordat and organisations across | PHOF C28c
E pp the county.
]
=
|

: —_ This is a priority for the Mental Health
\?vﬁg ;eﬁfr;e:nggltyigg re people 20.1% 22.0% 21.9% 2019/20 Concordat and organisations across | PHOF C28d
9 the county.
Suicide rate, age-standardised o o -
) ; . This is a priority for the Suicide
mortality rate from suicide and 8.7 10.1 104 | 2018-20 Prevention Strategy and Multiagency | PHOF E10




Age well

Loneliness: Percentage of adults

This is a system priority for
organisations supporting adults and

0, 0, 0, -

\;Vglr(; ;e;l tllz)g?ilz] ngeArrl1 r< ua;\;\)/ays or 24.2% 20.8% 22.3% 2019/20 should form part of a holistic PHOF - B19
assessment.

Excess under 75 mortality rate in . . .

adults with severe mental illness 325.2% | 402.5% | 365.2% | 2016-18 This is a priority for primary and PHOF - E09b
secondary care.

(SMI) (Annual)

Social isolation: percentage of This is a system priority for

adult social care users who have 44.1% 45.5% 45.9% 2019/20 organisations supporting adults and PHOE B18a

as much social contact as they
would like (Annual)

should form part of a holistic
assessment.

9T abed




Findings across the life course for mental wellbeing
This includes what we know from local and national data and the gaps in our knowledge (see table below) and breakdown across the age

groups.:
Area
mental health commaon mental
dizordars
impact of COVID
Sulcde
Y
in@ators of wellbeing |Uife satisfaction
«Q
D
|_\
~ Worthwhile
Happiness
Anxiaty

Bimodal distribution,
Iife sattsfaction- g
wariable over age
Froups: lowest 45-59

WS
Bimodal distributio
worthwhile - vanable
OVET 3g2 groups:
lowest 45-34 yrs, » B5's
Bimodal distribution,
happinass -uarlaﬂe.
OVEr 3g2 groups:
lowest 40-58 yrs,
highest S0-80 yrs

anxlety, Increasas ()
acro:s age categories
until 30-34 then
reduces

young F> young M

(o]
MF

-
MeF

o
MeF

o
M=

o
F=M

@

lower incom e

lower Incom e

not employed>
employed

not employed>  identify as Black, Astan, Ethnic munonties

employed O

mot employed> notclear moentdata shows |yrban areas

employed O

mot employeds
amployed

Black, Asian, Evhinkc mincrises
Fig her gl . some data ..
afie ded by s mall sample sioe

Soores wany: higher
than UK averags
(Indian}, most BAME
margnally lower but
Bladkafrican/Caribbea
5L FES Vary:
Bangladeshi and O
Black/african
Caribbean signlficantly

LU vary . e
ba chgound - (o]
significnathy higher,
Black/african
Carbbean significantly
lower

Vanes aoross

ba ckground, most
higher anxety than
average but not
significant, "arab™ anly

LGEOT

Iving alone Long term medical @

conditions, dizability
with existing mental ilin

living alone worse ife  long tem medical o
satisfaction O conditions score less

Iving alone score less  long term medical @
on worthwhile @ | conditions score less

Itving alone score less | long term medical g
on happines: o conditions score lass

Iving alone score

higher on amdet\r'

long term medical
conditions score higher
fior anxlety

Data available natismally but pet locally

Drata available loeslly

Data not available/lccated




Children and young people
Local data: from the OxWell Survey (primary and secondary schools) 2019 & 2020 and local analysis of the Active Lives survey for Oxfordshire:

3T abed

Mental wellbeing reduces with increasing age and is worse in girls.

During the lockdown, if support for mental health was needed the majority of
inyears 4-11 would speak to carer/parent, over half would contact a friend
almost 1 in 5 would look for help online.

Impact of lockdown; teenagers more likely to struggle with sleep and feel
lonely. 41% of pupils who responded to the 2020 Oxfordshire survey in year
reported being too worried to sleep often.

Those most at risk of reporting deteriorations in their mental wellbeing

during lockdown, according to analysis of Oxwell 2020 data across the South
of pupils inschool years 8-13 were female, those who reported socio-

economic deprivation/use of food banks and those with previous mental
health support or upcoming examinations

In teenager years, young people engage less with physical activity
(decreasing after year 9/10).

4in 10 children and young people across Oxfordshire are not active
enough (by national CMO activity guidelines). Children and young people
from Black backgrounds have seen the largest drop in activity levels during
COVID-19 pandemic of all ethnic groups and those form less wealthy families
also saw a worse impact on physical activity.

Experiencing bullying is more common inyounger ages:in 2019, 21% (1 in
pupils in year 4 reported being frequently bullied and 10% (1 in 10)
sometimes bullied (Oxwell 2019 data).

National data:
Teenagers up to 16 years, connect less with nature. Watch a short video here from Daniel aged 16; relaxing with nature in my local park.

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Percent

High mental wellbeing score Average mental wellbeing score

Below average mental wellbeing score B Low mental wellbeing score th
0Se
3% and
17%
16%
more
71%
66%
61%
East

18%
9% 6%

Primary 2019 (n=2,007) Secondary 2019 (n=1,219) Year 12 2019 (n=212- N.B.
relatively small sample size)

Too worried to sleep . Often . rarely
100-

75-

the

50-

25-

5)

10 11 12 13
Year group

Nationally over 1 in 10 of 10-15 year olds report feeling lonely often and loneliness is increased at life transition points. Children living in

urban areas are more likely to feel lonely

10


https://acamh.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/full/10.1002/jcv2.12021
https://youtu.be/jUQOT9H5lRY
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/articles/childrensandyoungpeoplesexperiencesofloneliness/2018

Young adults (16-24-year olds)

* Young adults were disproportionately affected by unemployment during the COVID-19 pandemic, from December 2020 compared to
December 2019 people aged 16-24 claiming unemployment benefits tripled in Oxfordshire.

» National surveys repeatedly show highest levels of self-reported loneliness amongst all adult ages are in 16-24-year olds. Greater level of
risk of loneliness with younger renters with little trust and sense of belonging to their area. Or if living in single adult households (this is from
ONS analysis of national data)

« Local providers feel there is less support available or accessed by ethnic minorities, younger adults, LGBQT+ ; highlighting the need to
consider transition points into adulthood.
Adults

» Across Oxfordshire indicators of mental wellbeing in adults are generally good, however around 1 in 5 Oxfordshire residents’ still report high
anxiety scores (20.1% of Oxfordshire residents in 2019/2020, compared to 22% of residents in the South East).

« In 2019/2020 7% of Oxfordshire residents reported a low happiness score (compared to 8.7% nationally and 7.9% in the South East,
although differences are not significant). The full impact of COVID-19 on mental wellbeing is not yet known.

Trend in average wellbeing scores in Trend in average level of Anxiety to year
=y Oxfordshire to year ending March 2020 ending March 2020, Oxfordshire vs England
g —dr—Life satisfaction Worthwhile Happiness 3.4 Anxi
o)) 2 \s nxiety
|_\

O s 32 \ —8—Oxfordshire

7.8 31
” r/-(’/"\-/‘\\‘ . ) England
7.4 2.9
7.2 18

7 2.7
6.8 26

W T e N2 ] ]
.;C\\' {-,',\“" \?’? '»“‘p o o ':"\k) 3’\\, '»u’@ '\.""‘{& '\'}':‘K?’ {‘-l’“&? «Pﬁ «i”\‘\? w'”\‘é *C‘\‘@ '»"’\'& '\?’Qﬁ
S T S S, S S S U A S S S )

11


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/articles/lonelinesswhatcharacteristicsandcircumstancesareassociatedwithfeelinglonely/2018-04-10
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/articles/lonelinesswhatcharacteristicsandcircumstancesareassociatedwithfeelinglonely/2018-04-10

« In Oxfordshire most visits to natural environments are made by wealthier

families and those that identify as white. See barriers to visiting the natural Barriers to VISItIng the natural

environment graph. environment: Oxfordshire residents
16.4
« There are inequalities in levels of wellbeing and enablers across . 14.7
Oxfordshire; as one of the most affluent areas of the Country. There are 10 T&u . 94
wards which feature areas in the 20% most deprived in England; 9 in Oxford 2 : 8.1 ,
City, 6 in Banbury and 1 in Abingdon. 2 48 . . . 48
« Financial stability is a significant contributor to mental wellbeing. - -

Healthwatch and community actions’ January 2021 report highlighted the

pressures of life including - money, jobs and family concerns, cost of housing

and food in Oxford, racism and discrimination, immigration worries and L :
. i . . . Percentage of respondents with high anxiety (score 6-10) in England, by age group - 2019

the impact of COVID-19 as important contributors to mental wellbeing in  compared with most recent time period

Oxfords new and emerging communities.

Bad weather Oldage  Poorhealth  Disahility Busy at home Busy at work No reason

50

More likely to be lonely in this age group are un-married, middle agers
with long-term health conditions (ONS national data)

Recent ONS data highlights the increase of loneliness during the
COVID-19 pandemic. Levels of self-reported loneliness between
October and February 2021 are available at district and city level, though
caution is advised in making direct comparisons due to small sample
sizes.

% of respondents

0¢ abed

1610 24 251034 IS0 44 451054 S5to6d 85to 74 75+

Age group

Anxiety during the COVID-19 pandemic has increased across the life B saseine2019 W 16052021
course according to PHE data

Older adults
« Access and use of green spaces and physical activity decreases with age; e.g. for physical activity above the age of 75 years across

Oxfordshire.
« Feelings of life being worth- while and happiness decrease inthose over 80 or 85 years (ONS national level data)

* Loneliness: More likely to be lonely in this age group are those who are widowed older homeowners living alone (ONS national data).
Especially during COVID-19 those isolated or with restricted visitors.

- Different ways the pandemic has impacted — for example those who are isolated, shielding experienced an additional loss of physical,
cognitive skills and social confidence .

Number of older people digitally connected is rising, but age is still the biggest factor for digital exclusion. Nearly two million over-75s in England
are still digitally excluded .

12


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/articles/lonelinesswhatcharacteristicsandcircumstancesareassociatedwithfeelinglonely/2018-04-10
file:///C:/Users/ji913011/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/WC156E95/Mapping%20loneliness%20during%20the%20coronavirus%20pandemic%20-%20Office%20for%20National%20Statistics%20(ons.gov.uk)
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/articles/lonelinesswhatcharacteristicsandcircumstancesareassociatedwithfeelinglonely/2018-04-10

Agenda Iltem 9

Health Improvement Board (HIB) |

18th November 2021

Update from Suicide Prevention Multi Agency Group

| Purpose/ Recommendation |

1. HIB members are asked to note the report and next steps and consider further
steps that could be taken to mitigate the self-harm and suicide risk factors
highlighted in the paper.

| Executive Summary |

There has not been an observable impact in national and local suicide rates and self-harm
presentations during the COVID-19 pandemic. However, there has been an increase in
associated risk factors related to suicide and self-harm such as unemployment, financial
difficulties, self-reported wellbeing, domestic abuse, depression, anxiety, social isolation,
relationship strain, bereavement, and loneliness. This paper details some of those impacts,
and highlights steps to be taken by partners across the county to mitigate the risks.

Background |

The factors leading to someone taking their own life are complex. Suicide is both a public
health concern and everyone’s business. Some subgroups are more exposed and vulnerable
to unfavourable social, economic, and environmental circumstances. These subgroups,
interrelated with ethnicity, gender and age, are at higher risk of mental health problems.

In 2019, the suicide rate in England was 10.8 deaths per 100,000 population (a total of 5,316
deaths). This is consistent with the rate observed in 2018 (10.3 deaths per 100,000) and is
the highest rate seen since 2000.1

Oxfordshire Context?

The suicide rate in Oxfordshire in 2017-19 was 8.9 per 100,000 of population (all ages)
compared to the England rate of 10.1 per 100,000. This is a slight increase from the rate
observed in 2016-18 of 8.6 per 100,000.3

The suicide rate in Oxfordshire males is statistically similar to England with a rate of 14.9 per
100,000 in 2017-19. This is a slight increase on the previous year (2016-18) which showed
a rate of 14.2. Among females in Oxfordshire, the rate of suicide per 100,000 in 2017-19 was
3.1, down from 3.2 in the previous year. Compared to a 4.9 per 100,000 population in
England.

1 Ons.gov.uk. 2021. Suicides in England and Wales - Office for National Statistics. [online] Available at:
Suicides in England and Wales - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk) Suicides in England and Wales -
Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk) [Accessed 21 October 2021].

2 A note on data: we have used local datawhere possible, where not we have used national data.

8 Public Health England), P., 2021. Suicide Prevention Profile - PHE. [online] Fingertips.phe.org.uk. Available
at: Suicide Prevention Profile - PHE [Accessed 21 October 2021].

1
Page 21


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2020registrations
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2020registrations
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/2020registrations
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/suicide

In 2019/20, Oxfordshire had a higher proportion of hospital admissions as a result of self-
harm in 10-24 year olds (462.1 per 100,000) compared to the England average (439.2 per
100,000).4

Oxfordshire has a wide ranging, well-established multi-agency group (MAG) that is dedicated
to preventing suicide and self-harm. There are over 20 organisations who have all made a
commitment to both the development and delivery of the Oxfordshire Suicide and Self-Harm
Prevention strategy. These range from public and private sectors, to national and local charity
sector organisations.

The Oxfordshire strategy, based on national policy, combined with the local knowledge,
insight and personal experiences, sets out the long-term focus and commitment of the
Suicide Multi Agency Group partners to reduce suicide and self-harm in Oxfordshire over the
next four years.® It represents the combined work of the Oxfordshire Suicide Prevention Multi -
Agency Group combined with residents’ views.

The strategy has four focus areas:

e Safer Oxfordshire Communities,
e Safer Professionals and settings,
e Accessible support for those effected,
e Strong integrated prevention network;

underpinned by four action areas:

e Real-time surveillance and analysis,

e Identifying and reducing high-risk groups and behaviours,

e Supporting after suicide and self-harm, including living experience,
e Promote resilience and wellbeing.

The Mental Health Prevention Concordat Partnership Group was established in May 2020
bringing together partners from across local health, voluntary sector organisations, and
county and district council partners. The group coordinates and delivers mental health
prevention activity across the county. A report on the work of the partnership was presented
to the board in May 2021.°

| Key Issues

Impact of COVID-19 on suicide rates and self-harm

National research indicates that there has not been an escalation in suicide figures during
the pandemic. A subset of local areas (population coverage ~9million) has not shown a

4 Children_and Young People's Mental Health and Wellbeing — PHE Fingertips)

5 Oxfordshire Suicide and Self-Harm Prewvention Strategy (2020). [online] Available at:
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/adult-social-and-health -
care/OxfordshireSSHPreventionStrategy.pdf [Accessed 21 October 2021]

6 Agenda Document for Health Improvement Partnership Board, 27/05/2021 14:00 (oxfordshire.gov.uk)

2
Page 22


https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/adult-social-and-health-care/OxfordshireSSHPreventionStrategy.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/adult-social-and-health-care/OxfordshireSSHPreventionStrategy.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/adult-social-and-health-care/OxfordshireMentalHealthPreventionFramework.pdf
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/cypmh/data
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/adult-social-and-health-care/OxfordshireSSHPreventionStrategy.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/adult-social-and-health-care/OxfordshireSSHPreventionStrategy.pdf
https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/documents/g6619/Public%20reports%20pack%20Thursday%2027-May-2021%2014.00%20Health%20Improvement%20Partnership%20Board.pdf?T=10

significant rise in average number of suicides when comparing pre- and post- lockdown
periods.’

Around half of all people who die by suicide have a history of self-harm.® Early indications
from local data show that self-harm presentations to A&E across age ranges has fluctuated
over the pandemic. Overall presentations reduced in the first lockdown period (April — July
2020), and returned to pre-pandemic levels out of lockdowns.® We will continue to monitor
this data as it becomes available.

It is not presently clear what the longer-term impact of the pandemic will be on the mental
health of residents in Oxfordshire. The effects may be significant and there are suggestions
that suicide rates will rise over the long term, although this is not inevitable.1® The picture is
complex, and the impact is likely to be different within countries and communities.!

Impact of COVID-19 on associated risk factors

At present, there is no observed impact of COVID-19 on self-harm and suicide rates.
However, there has been a potential increase in risk factors related to suicide and self-harm,
either an associated illness or for example a worsening social and economic situation.

Risk factors for self-harm and suicide that have or have likely been adversely impacted by
COVID-19 include unemployment, debt, financial issues, self-reported wellbeing, domestic
abuse, depression, anxiety, social isolation, relationships, bereavement, and loneliness.12

Nationally COVID-19 has shone a light on existing health inequities, having a
disproportionate impact on many of those who already had worse health outcomes before
the pandemic including those in lower-paid work, from black and ethnic minority backgrounds
and living in poorer areas.13

Two categories of vulnerable groups are highlighted in the Government's Fifth Progress
Report on preventing suicide in England in the context of COVID-19:

e Those with existing problems that have been exacerbated by the pandemic

e Those for whom the pandemic has resulted in significant and specific new issues that
are associated with suicide (e.g. job loss, unmanageable debt related to reduced
income, bereavement and loneliness or social isolation)

7 Preventing suicide in England: Fifth progress report of the cross-government outcomes strategy to save
lives (publishing.senice.gov.uk)

8 Risk of suicide and mortality, University of Manchester

9 In the absence of recent 2020/2021 Public Health Outcomes Framework data on self-harm rates (latest
available is 2019/20) we have consulted with the Oxford Monitoring System for Self-harm, Department of
Psychiatry (University of Oxford)® which suggests that there has not been a significant increase in self harm
presentations to A&E in the John Radcliffe Hospital, Oxford.

10 1bid.

11 Trends in suicide during the covid-19 pandemic | The BMJ

12 Suicide Prevention Profile, PHE available here: https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile -group/mental-
health/profile/suicide/data#page/0/gid/1938132831/pat/6/par/E12000008/ati/102/are/E10000025/cid/4/tbm/1
13 Disparities in the risk and outcomes of COVID August 2020 update, available here:
https://assets.publishing.senice.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908434/Dis
parities_in_the_risk_and_outcomes_of COVID_August 2020_update.pdf

3
Page 23


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/973935/fifth-suicide-prevention-strategy-progress-report.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/973935/fifth-suicide-prevention-strategy-progress-report.pdf
http://www.mash.bmh.manchester.ac.uk/epidemiology-and-risk-factors/risk-of-suicide-and-mortality/
https://www.psych.ox.ac.uk/research/csr/research-projects-1/the-oxford-monitoring-system-for-self-harm
https://www.psych.ox.ac.uk/research/csr/research-projects-1/the-oxford-monitoring-system-for-self-harm
https://www.bmj.com/content/371/bmj.m4352
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/suicide/data#page/0/gid/1938132831/pat/6/par/E12000008/ati/102/are/E10000025/cid/4/tbm/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/suicide/data#page/0/gid/1938132831/pat/6/par/E12000008/ati/102/are/E10000025/cid/4/tbm/1
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908434/Disparities_in_the_risk_and_outcomes_of_COVID_August_2020_update.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908434/Disparities_in_the_risk_and_outcomes_of_COVID_August_2020_update.pdf

The new Oxfordshire Wellbeing Needs Assessment demonstrates the impacts of COVID-19
on anxiety, depression, and wider determinants factors, highlights below.

Loneliness, anxiety, and depression

During the pandemic, loneliness has increased. In April-May 2020, 5.0% of adults in England
said that they felt lonely “often” or “always” rising to just over 7% of adults between October
2020-February 2021.14 Amongst some, for example older adults who have been shielding,
there has been a loss of social and physical confidence after periods of isolation.

New studies tracking changes in anxiety and depression since the first lockdown began,
suggest that in March and April 2020 anxiety and depression and stress were all higher
compared to benchmark values.'® Within this study, groups that were more likely to
experience anxiety and depression were: young adults (18-34) and women; those living
alone; those in urban areas; people with lower household incomes; those with a diagnosed
mental illness; those with a long standing physical illness; adults not in employment.16

The 2020 OxWell survey across the South-East showed that for respondents in school age
children age year 13-18 years old, the highest proportion reported that their general
happiness and sleep had worsened, and that they were lonelier during lockdown.’

Wider determinants focus on finance

In September 2020, there were 24,100 furloughed employments in Oxfordshire. This
represented a 7% uptake of the scheme, compared with an 8% uptake across England.!®

Across Oxfordshire, the number of unemployment claimants rose significantly at the start of
the pandemic, from 6,670 in March 2020 to 17,375 in May 2020. The increase of 163% was
higher than the national and regional averages (see table 1 below). From May 2020 until April
2021 the claimant figures remained steady at around this figure but have been decreasing
over the months since March 2021, standing at 13,130 in September 2021.1°

The highest proportion of unemployment claimants in Oxfordshire between December 2019
and December 2020, was in 16-24 year olds, rising from 945 to 3020. This fell to 2,210 (4.7%
of 16—24 year-olds in Oxfordshire, compared to 8.8% nationally) in August 2021.

Within Oxfordshire during the peak month of May 2020 there were differences in
unemployment claims by districts (see table 1 below).

14 Coronavirus _and loneliness, Great Britain (April - May 2020)

15 pata from PHE Wider impacts of COVID-19 on health monitoring tool: Wider impacts of COVID-19 on
health monitoring tool - GOV.UK (www.goV.uk).

16 Covid-19 mental health and wellbeing surweillance report GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

17 School mental health summary report - OxWell

18 Coronavirus _Job Retention Scheme statistics: November 2020 - GOV.UK (www.goV.uk)

19 Unemployment_claimants to November 2020 | Oxfordshire Insight

4
Page 24


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/bulletins/coronavirusandlonelinessgreatbritain/3aprilto3may2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/wider-impacts-of-covid-19-on-health-monitoring-tool
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/wider-impacts-of-covid-19-on-health-monitoring-tool
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-mental-health-and-wellbeing-surveillance-report/2-important-findings-so-far#fn:10
https://www.psych.ox.ac.uk/research/schoolmentalhealth/summary-report
http://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/unemployment-claimants-november-2020

Table 1: Numbers claiming unemployment benefits March 2020 to May 2020, by national, regional, local
authority, and district council

March 2020 to May 2020
change (numbers and
percentage)

1,460 2,840 4,010 2,550 175%
2,100 3,220 4,605 2,505 119%
1,050 2,235 3,230 2,180 208%
1,095 1,930 3,000 1,905 174%
955 1,925 2,660 1,705 179%
6,665 12,150 17,500 10,845 163%
120,930 219,285 302,595 181,665 150%
1,063,505 1,764,725 2,227,190 1,213,685 114%

The increase in the number of claimants was highest in the South Oxfordshire district. The
rate per population was highest in Oxford and Cherwell (see table 2 below).2°

March 2020 | April 2020 May 2020

Table 2: Percentage rate per population claiming unemployment benefits March 2020 to May 2020, by
national, regional, local authority, and district council

March 2020 | April 2020 May 2020

The Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (furlough) and the £20 Universal Credit uplift ended
on 30 September 2021 which may add financial pressure onto less affluent families living in
Oxfordshire.

| Next steps

As described above, there are established partnership groups supporting Suicide Prevention
and Self-Harm and Mental Health Prevention, both with strategies, frameworks, and action
plans in place. The next steps below focus on responding to the issues outlined in this paper.

Suicide and Self-Harm MAG:

e Continue to analyse self-harm and suicide data in real-time and to monitor trends (to
assess the impact of COVID-19).

20 Bitesize_Unemployment_to_May20.pdf (oxfordshire.gov.uk)

5
Page 25


https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/system/files/documents/202006_Bitesize_Unemployment_to_May20.pdf

Work with the Suicide and Self-Harm Multi Agency Group members to focus work on
COVID-19 recovery in 2021/22, using local insight from partners.

Work closely with partners on the Mental Health Prevention Concordat Partnership
Group to align priorites on COVID-19 recovery, working together to address
inequalities, improving local mental wellbeing and reducing risk of self-harm and
suicide.

Continue to target training to professionals who work with high-risk groups, e.g. staff
at Job Centres, Citizens Advice, and/or other voluntary agencies who work with people
in financial difficulties.

Mental Health Prevention Concordat Partnership Group:

Continue to work to promote resilience and wellbeing to high-risk groups e.g. a
men’s mental health campaign is planned for winter 2021/22, building on the
momentum from the May 2021 ‘Removing Barriers to Support Men’s Health in
Oxfordshire’ event and formation of the Men’s Health Partnership.

Learn from the Community Participation Action Research — a research project
currently underway focussing on inequalities and understanding the impact of COVID-
19 on ethnic minority communities in Oxfordshire.

Learn from the national working group that has been established on the impact of long
COVID on self-harm and suicide.

Oxfordshire Health Education Social Care (HESC)

Conduct a children and Young People emotional wellbeing and mental health services
and projects gap analysis, with a view of developing a strategy. Understanding the full
picture of services and projects that support children and young people’s emotional
wellbeing and mental health by level of need, and investment. Recommendations to
follow on where to add investment, using gap analysis, wellbeing needs assessment,
and other local data, to support CYP emotional wellbeing and mental health.

Members of the Health Improvement Board

Explore potential for work on mental health and wellbeing wider determinants, with a
focus on financial insecurity and inequalities, thinking about how we ‘build back fairer’.
For example, local authorities within the Buckinghamshire Oxfordshire Berkshire
(BOB) Integrated Care System (ICS) area have adopted the Citizen’s Advice ‘Council
Tax Protocol'.?! The protocol proactively engages with people struggling with bill
payments to help prevent further charges and to alleviate stress.

Report by: Senior Public Health Principal

Contact Officer: Jack Gooding, Senior Public Health Principal,

jack.gooding@oxfodshire.gov.uk

November 2021

21 Citizens Advice Council Tax Protocol

6
Page 26


mailto:jack.gooding@oxfodshire.gov.uk
https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/Global/CitizensAdvice/campaigns/Council%20Tax/Citizens%20Advice%20Council%20Tax%20Protocol%202017.pdf

heaﬁﬁi@tertnc]ﬂ

Oxfordshire

Your voice on health and care services

18t November 2021
Healthwatch Oxfordshire report.

Presented By: Amier Al Agab- Healthwatch Oxfordshire Ambassador.

| Purpose / Recommendation |

e For questions and responses to be taken in relation to this report

| Executive Summary \

e Summary of Healthwatch Oxfordshire activity between September and end October
2021. A full report will be included in papers to the Healthwatch Oxfordshire
Board meeting on 30t November 2021.

| Background |

Healthwatch Oxfordshire is continuing to listen to the views and experiences of people in
Oxfordshire about health and social care. We continue to use a variety of methods to
hear from people including survey, outreach, community research, and work with specific
groups including Patient Participation groups, voluntary groups and seldom heard. We
have increased our social media presence and output to raise the awareness of
Healthwatch Oxfordshire.

| Key Activities and outcomes

The long and winding road

In 2017 Healthwatch Oxfordshire published a report on people’s experiences of travelling

to and parking at Hospitals in Oxford and Banbury. We heard from 295 people at all four

hospital sites and made the following recommendations to the Oxford University Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust regarding the Headington hospital sites:

1. OUHFT should further explore ‘spreading’ out-patient appointments across the day
/ week. This will relieve the pressure on the access routes and parking facilities,
thus improving the patient experience of attending a hospital appointment.

OUHT response to this recommendation: The Trust is actively looking into developing

care pathways to make changes in how we maximise the estate and smooth access. This

work will take time to implement across each service.

The Trust now runs a seven-day clinic across many of its departments.

2. OUHFT should undertake a review of the number of Blue Badge spaces available at
all sites, and their use

18t November 2021 Healthwatch Oxfordshire B@@ I%Zth Improvement Board Page 1 of 3



OUHT response to this recommendation: Thank you for the suggestion and this is an
excellent idea, which the Trust will pursue.

3. OUHFT should explore a simple solution, adopted by other hospitals in the country,
of a dedicated Blue Badge only parking area with separate access.

OUHT response to this recommendation:
Again, as above, this is an excellent suggestion, and the Trust will pursue this
recommendation in line with the last recommendation.

In August 2021 the Trust announced that:

“Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) is now in place at the John Radcliffe and
Churchill hospitals.

The ANPR system means a camera photographs all vehicles entering and leaving the car
park. The camera is linked to the on-site pay machines and a payment website.

Some of the main benefits of ANPR include:
e card payment for parking
o better vehicle movement across our sites
e quicker entrance and exit to our car parks
e better management of how people use our car parks.

The installation of ANPR is part of over £1m of improvement works on the Trust's visitor
car parks, including:

e creating a dedicated cark park with blue badge spaces at the Churchill

e making separate access to the disabled car parking spaces at the John Radcliffe
e new card payment machines at the Horton General Hospital

e re-surfacing and lining in most car parks.

ANPR will not impact current exceptions or concessions for visitors and Blue Badge users,
and the price of parking for other users remains the same.”

Sam Foster, Chief Nursing Officer at Oxford University Hospitals, said: "We recognise that
car parking and traffic flow are a major source of frustration for our patients, visitors,
and staff, and that it can impact negatively on patients’ experience of visiting our
hospitals. Installing ANPR is an important step towards improving the experience of
visiting our hospitals for both patients and their loved ones."

Reflection and success

Change can take a long time to come about - 4 years in this case. Without patients and
families talking to Healthwatch Oxfordshire your experiences and voice would not have
been heard! Hopefully these improvements will enhance people’s experiences of
accessing the hospital sites. No more tears, no more being left standing alone, no more
being left at the door whilst the car is parked.

All Healthwatch Oxfordshire reports can found here
https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/our-work/research-reports/.

18t November 2021 Healthwatch Oxfordsh’%m gaealth Improvement Board Page 2 of 3


https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/our-work/research-reports/

Current work focus includes:

e Listening to people’s experience of interpreting services whilst accessing health
and care services.

e Follow up survey of GP websites - have the recommendations of our report of
March 2020 been actioned?

e Access to GP services - people experience of contacting their GP surgery.

e NHS hospital waiting times - a joint project with four other Healthwatch covering

the Buckinghamshire Oxfordshire Berkshire West Integrated Care System area (BOB

ICS).

Key issues we are hearing continue to be about access to GPs and NHS dentists.

e The Community Researchers are progressing with their projects. Over 20 women
attended a discussion with lunch on 30t October hearing about black women’s
experiences of maternity care. A full report and film will be available in early
2022.

e Re-commence Enter & View visits during November 2021.

e Chipping Norton outreach programme -to talk to the residents of Chipping Norton
and the surrounding village about their experience of using health and social care
services.

n

| Key Dates

Healthwatch Oxfordshire Board Meeting - Tuesday 30t November 4.30 when members of
the public are welcome to have a conversation with our Trustees. Details on how to join
this virtual meeting are on our website www.healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk

Report by: Amier Al Agab - Healthwatch Oxfordshire Ambassador.

18t November 2021 Healthwatch Oxfordshire B@% I%gth Improvement Board Page 3 of 3


http://www.healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

ITEM x
Health Improvement Board

18" November 2021

Cycling and Walking Activation Programme- Interim Evaluation Report

\ Purpose / Recommendation

1. The Health Improvement Board is asked to review the Cycling and Walking
Activation Programme interim evaluation report for information, to note the
progress made and to support this ongoing programme of work.

\ 1. Background

2. Areport was presented to the HIB in Nov 2020, outlining the Healthy Place
Shaping programme, and the key active travel initiatives within this which
were to be funded by the Department for Transport’'s Emergency Active
Travel Fund (EATF) Tranche 2. Oxfordshire County Council’s bid was
successful, enabling the delivery of ambitious and bold plans to improve
cycling and walking in Oxfordshire. The bid provided funding for infrastructure
projects and revenue to support a range of complementary measures to
promote walking and cycling.

In addition, the county council successfully bid for the Department for
Transport’s Travel Demand Management (TDM) fund, specifically to address
COVID-19 related travel demand management for the return to school at the
beginning of the 2020 academic year, when strict social distancing and other
COVID secure measures were in place.

These two bids funded a combination of infrastructure work and activation
work and led to the development of a Cycling and Walking Activation
Programme. The aim is to address three key transport challenges;
congestion, environmental issues, and health and wellbeing issues, related to
overreliance on use of private vehicles and underutilisation of active travel.
Delivery of this programme reports monthly to the OCC Active Travel
Programme Board and on a six-monthly basis to the Department for
Transport.

This paper summarises the interim evaluation report of the Cycling and
Walking Activation Programme.

3. The activation programme aims to capitalise on the infrastructure works and
engage the population with this new infrastructure in order to drive a modal
shift towards active travel. These projects seek to identify effective ways to
achieve modal shift, to understand barriers to cycling and walking and to work

Page 31



with the community to deliver interventions to enable residents to change their
behaviour.
4. The aims of the activation programme are to:

Deliver integrated planning, design, delivery and monitoring of all cycling
and walking activation schemes that are promoting active travel in
Oxfordshire, making use of the existing and new infrastructure

Work towards the priorities set out in the OCC corporate plan in particular
striving to give every child a good start in life and designing places that
encourage healthy and active lives.

The specific objectives are:

To increase the proportion of people who regularly walk or cycle in
Oxfordshire by promoting modal shift to active travel

To increase the proportion of people who feel safe when walking or
cycling, including on journeys to school

To reduce inequalities in active travel (including geographical inequalities
and those by age, gender, ethnicity, and socio-economic status)

To identify and understand the barriers to walking and cycling, including
hyper-local barriers

Build local capacity to address these barriers

To reduce carbon and air pollution emissions across the network

The activation programme includes a range of projects, with some focussed
on increasing active travel to school, and others engaging with targeted
groups within the community. The core activation projects are:

Street Tag: use of a cycling and walking gamification App, countywide, to
nudge people into being active, specifically targeted towards families with
school age children. This will ensure maximum impact of new
infrastructure, support long term behaviour change, and provide valuable
data that can be used for monitoring and evaluation.

School Streets: pilot schemes across the county, at nine schools in total.
The School Streets in parts of Oxford city support the implementation of
Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTNs) and other road space reallocation
measures

School ‘Park and Stride’ wayfinding pilot project to implement signage
and line markings between schools and nearby car parks or residential
areas. This will be implemented in five primary schools across the county
Kidlington Wayfinding Zoo Trails: to implement walking routes for health
Communications campaigns to promote the activation programmes and
behavioural change

Community Activation: a series of community walking and cycling
activation projects and activities. Examples include bike libraries; cycle
tuition; ‘Walk, Talk & Tea’ for shielding populations; training community

Page 32



7.

members as ride leaders; mental health focused walking groups; inclusive
cycling provision i.e., Wheels for All (appendix 1 for a full list and detail on
progress of these wide-ranging projects).

The cycling and walking activation programme is being evaluated at project
and programme level, using mixed methods. Most projects have employed, or
will employ, survey methodology to assess outcome measures. However, a
range of automated monitoring has also been used, for example, in assessing
traffic volumes in street closure zones for the School Streets project, air
guality around schools, and participation with the Street Tag app.

The School Streets pilot scheme and the Street Tag app project have been
completed and detailed results are included in this report (Annex 1 and 2).
The key findings of these two projects and the impact of the communication
campaign for the activation programme to date are summarised here. A final
evaluation report will be prepared in the first quarter of 2022, when all projects
are complete and have been evaluated. Other projects including the School
Park and Stride project, the Kidlington ‘Zoo Trails’ and the Community
Activation projects are currently being evaluated.

Headline Results

More detailed results are in Annex land 2.

9.

School Streets
- Survey responses showed a reduction in driving to school of 6.9

percentage points over the six-week closure period, 3.2 percentage point
increase in cycling, 1.6 percentage point increase in scooting and skating
to school as well as 1.5 percentage point increase in walking. With small
increases in car sharing and park & stride options there were also
slight decreases in train and bus travel.

- Surveys showed that overall active travel to school (walking, scooting,
skating, and cycling) increased in the trial schools by 6.3 percentage
points plus a small increase in Park and Stride.

- Windmill School showed the highest comparable difference between
baseline and follow up with 25.9% of 563 respondents saying they were
driven to school prior to the School Street, down to 11.8% of 162
respondents at the end of the trial (14.1 percentage point decrease).

- Vehicle, walking and cycling trip counts showed an increase in walking
and cycling trips during the closure periods (morning and afternoon) at
School Streets locations and, at locations where car trips were counted, a
corresponding decrease in car trips.

Page 33



In comparison to schools where street closures had not yet been
implemented, School Streets locations showed a greater increase in
walking and cycling counts at the follow up period, compared to baseline.

School streets were widely supported by local communities with over 60%
of local school communities supporting the street closures. Parents at the
schools, who are also local residents. were even more supportive, with
72% stating support for the street closures.

Some schools identified issues with traffic displacement and poor parking
in neighbouring streets whilst others struggled in securing volunteers. As a
result, three of the schools decided not to continue once the pilot period
was completed.

Discussions are now underway to agree a sustainable approach to running
School Streets with the six pilot schools who have indicated that they wish
to extend their use in the new academic year.

We used the HEAT tool! to estimate the economic value of the health
benefits gained from an increased mode share of walking and cycling. The
HEAT tool has some limitations in that it does not calculate benefits of
reduced morbidity, only reduced premature mortality, and that is does not
calculate health benefits for children. Therefore, the benefits estimated are
only for adults accompanying children. Also, it does not take account of
increased ‘journey ambiance’. Even with this significantly conservative
estimate of benefits however, the Benefit-Cost Ratio achieved, if the
increases of 3.2% cycling and 1.5% walking were maintained for the 9
School Streets schools (a total population of 3,490 children) is 2. This
shows this intervention would deliver two pounds of benefit to health for
every pound spent on the intervention.

10.Street Tag

Nearly 10,000 users signed up, spread across the county, with users in all
districts and the city.

Resulted in increases in frequency of walking and cycling, and time spent
doing these activities.

Engaged the key target audience: families and school children (based on
age groups most engaged).

The biggest challenge was to engage users for a range of ethnic
backgrounds.

1 https://lwww.heatwalkingcycling.org/#homepage

4

Page 34



Well used throughout the project period, including the winter months. This
is particularly notable given that the autumn and winter period coincided
with prolonged period of county wide or national COVID-19 lockdown
restrictions. The results described in chapter 3, indicate decreases in sport
and fitness activity — which would be impacted by lockdown restrictions -
but increases in walking and cycling, highlighting the potentially important
role of Street Tag in sustaining physical activity levels over this period.

The app engaged females in physical activity, at least as much if not more
than males.

11.Communications Campaign

The communications package around the activation programme has
created significant media presence with excellent reach for this type of
geo-targeted social media campaign.

Overall, the Street Tag element of the campaign was highly successful,
with Oxfordshire having the highest sign-up rate for Street Tag in the
country during its first season.

The campaign helped to generate over 4,340 players in the school league
and over 630 players in the community league. In the Oxfordshire Street
Tag Schools League a massive 318,453,192 steps were walked, players
travelled over 285,700 miles.

The comms campaign helped to engage parents, staff, pupils and local
residents with the School Street and helped recruitment of volunteers, a
critical part of the delivery of School Streets.

The ‘could you’ messages and ‘did you know’ facts performed the best,
and the ‘creating space’ around the school gates graphic and the video
performed well too. The messages helped people think about their journey
and whether they could make changes. To further develop the narrative
the park and walk message could be developed and linked to the Street
Tag app with acceptable parking locations tagged on the map.

The average ad recall lift for Facebook is 18%, the geo targeted adverts
had a recall lift of 19% and the Oxfordshire parents with primary school
children had a recall lift of 11%. Future active travel for schools’ messages
should run with geo-targeted ads and we should investigate the possibility
of tailoring each advert for individual locations.

Both the Google and Facebook and Instagram ads for Street Tag
performed well with over 2.5 million impressions and over 26,400

Page 35



engagements. The sentiment overall was positive; there were comments
from people who'’ve started using the app and those from people sharing
the post.

- The highest performing advert on Facebook and Instagram was the ‘use
Street Tag while walking the dog’, followed by the cyclist and runner ‘about
the app’ message for the community league and the ‘compete for rewards
for your school’ with a pupil using the app for the schools’ league. The
video of the app in use performed well too.

- For Google ads the ‘Street Tag is turning Oxfordshire into a virtual
playground’ and ‘Play Street Tag today’ performed the best for both
audiences.

12.Community Activation

Community Activation measures are intended to complement infrastructure
measures being taken in Witney, Bicester and Oxford. Some activities
commenced in the summer of 2021 with the remainder starting in September;
engagement levels reflect participation at this relatively early stage of project
delivery.

Headline figures

Bicester (£25,000 allocated)

Target engagement: 495 residents

Residents engaged to date: 193

80% working age adults — 20% Primary School aged children

Witney (£25,000 allocated)

Target engagement: 400 residents

Residents engaged to date:181

18% older adults — 32% working age adults — 50 % Primary School aged
children

Oxford (£25,000 allocated)

Target engagement: 600 residents

Residents engaged to date:194

80% working age adults — 20 % Primary School aged children

Conclusions & Recommendations

13.School Streets

The impact on travel to school mode was beneficial, with an overall decrease
in travel by car and an increase in walking and cycling. However, too few
surveys on travel mode were completed in the follow up period, after the

Page 36



closures were in place, for any robust findings per school or to understand
differences in the impact in different schools.

Across all schools, there was general support for School Streets. Several
schools have decided to continue running the School Street; however,
volunteer capacity is an issue for many schools. For these to be sustainable in
the long term, permanent signage and camera enforcement is required to limit
the reliance on volunteer stewards to man the closure points.

At one school, Bure Park in Bicester, the pilot raised issues among residents,
resulting in the discontinuation of the School Street. Despite a lot of positive
feedback, the road was a major route into and out of the nearby estate and it
became clear that ETRO consultation and communications hadn’t reached far
enough for residents to feel informed and engaged with the project. The
Active Travel team are currently exploring alternative infrastructure design
solutions to address the congestion issues.

Next Steps

A broader support package will be offered to schools to address
congestion/safety concerns and to promote active travel. This will include a
suite of resources including active travel planning, wayfinding/park and stride
initiatives; safe parking campaigns, as well as school streets, so that the most
appropriate intervention is selected working with the school. The travel
planning team are currently recruiting to a post for schools’ engagement to
take this work forward and to continue to promote and facilitate active travel
projects within Oxfordshire Schools

Alongside self-reported survey measures, objective outcomes including robust
air quality monitoring and vehicle monitoring will be in place to quantify the
expected benefits more accurately. Sufficient data need to be captured to
understand the impacts on travel mode per school and to better understand
differences in the impact in different schools

A key learning is that schools need to self-nominate and have a commitment
to active travel promotion and a vested interest in improving the safety of
active travel journeys to school. To be a successful site for a School Street,
schools need to be able to:

- ldentify specific issues that need addressing for their school (e.g., air
quality, safety, speed, parking etc) and provide indication of need
(accident data, complaints, air quality measurements or baseline active
travel rates).

- Demonstrate understanding of their main and wider catchment areas, local
walking and cycling routes, whether any other complementary measures
are needed e.g., walking buses, park and stride routes, additional
motivational interventions and identify where a closure could take place
(considering entrances, exits to the schools, drop off and pick up times)

Page 37



- Engage with the school community (teaching staff and parents) to discuss
volunteering model and support required for a trial

- Be willing to facilitate and support data collection to enable the evaluation
of a School Street

- Implementing a one-day trial, to prepare for a longer six-week trial is a
methodology adopted by some other local authorities and could be
adopted in Oxfordshire.

14.Street Tag

Street Tag is being funded for a further academic year with a specific
requirement to increase participation of different ethnic minority groups by a
significant percentage. A sector-wide stakeholder’s consultation might help to
explore how to tackle barriers to participation among communities who are
least engaged.

The age group least represented on Street Tag is those aged 75 years and
over, usually one of the difficult to reach groups, particularly for apps.
Understanding user demographics, including the most engaged and least
engaged groups, is important to drive approach, engagement and
communication strategy. This could include extending campaigns to extra
care housing where a good number of participants above 75 years can be
found. Street Tag has developed an NFC fob/card in line with the digital
inclusion drive. This will help users with no access to Smartphones or the
internet, to buddy with others that have smartphones and engage in physical
activities together (for example, Grandparents buddying with their
grandchildren). Street Tag rewards users with the NFC fob/card and the
smartphone users for the collaboration.

For future roll outs, it will be important to ensure the app engages those who
are less active, as well as those already active. Moreover, it will be important
to understand the demographics and user profile (distance, log ins, points
collected) of those who do not complete the follow up questionnaire as much
as those who do to understand any bias in the results and draw adequate,
robust conclusions.

15.Communications Campaign

There were a few concerns raised regarding the safety of cycling on our roads
and issues with the storage of bikes at school. This is something that will be
considered and if possible, addressed in future active travel for schools’
communications.

Telling the story of how active travel has worked for schools, using case

studies from both schools and parents could help encourage parents to
consider how they can build active travel into their daily school journey

Page 38



e For future Street Tag communications, we will start telling the story of schools
and individuals using Street App. As well as using both the schools and
community league winners as case studies, we will show how the app is being
used and how it's benefiting schools, communities and individuals in
Oxfordshire; this should help to encourage others to start using the app.
Future communications to schools will highlight the fact that small schools can
join forces to compete for the rewards.

e Provide content for termly active travel toolkit to encourage schools to sign up
to Street Tag and promote to parents and families. The toolkit will be reviewed
and updated and sent out to new schools after they have signed up (yearly
update)

e Now the schools league is established, school news is the best platform to
promote the schools league to encourage schools to sign up and providing
schools with a toolkit to aid their communications to encourage parents and
their families to join up works well.

e To capitalise on other school travel initiatives, ongoing Schools Streets will be
included in a termly active travel communications toolkit for schools, with a
reminder to sign up for the new season of Street Tag going out through
school news.

e New stories and media engagement will be limited to big milestones and will
need a case study with one storytelling piece on social media to celebrate the
winners of the Street Tag league.

e For the community league, we will run a short burst of marketing to support
the launch of each new season (2-3 week run) and source case studies to
support the storytelling on social media the new season announcements. As
case studies of people using the app and telling their story will help engage
and encourage other people to do the same

e There was feedback on social media and in the local community that people
hadn't seen the School Streets surveys. A comms pack for schools to use to
encourage parents and local residents to respond to surveys may be
something to consider.

Ongoing Projects

16.Kidlington and Gosford ‘Zoo Trails’

In 2020, the Healthy Place Shaping team at Cherwell District Council (CDC)
launched a community-led programme to increase the physical activity levels of the
local community through the installation of new ‘heath routes’ - now called
Kidlington and Gosford Zoo Trails (see map example below).

Page 39



The aim is to promote walking for health and to use the new infrastructure to nudge
residents towards improved wellbeing, in particular, to increase physical activity in
primary school aged children. This involves creating 5 wayfinding routes throughout
Kidlington, connecting all the local schools, many hidden green spaces and parks,
shops and residential areas around the central hub of Exeter Hall. Ranging in length
from 1.5km to 5km. These are easy to follow trails, marked with bespoke signs and
pawprints on the ground with fun hopscotch and fitness type elements in safe alleys
and on park paths.

3 4
" e oy, true adventirons
N ® wolves decded to go explring

. rom the 200 They are having
Sonon oo of e trak,

AL Goyfiodthen? Q

= Monkey trail

| Vi
* ‘M(%tmﬂr-twtﬂlx-y
Streel, The Moars and, of course, the

wiods of Pt Ml Aecrmation Grund & 5%,
S Lion trail ;
)| Sn
B Prowing kon flows the longest route
s through Kickington and Gesord to the ste -
v of the ld 2v0. - B bogbotels and motare stops
: . T »
| Elephant trail ~ * o : &)s‘“‘“m-‘
'3' Vim o LYY B « sach i
) [§] Maestic cephact strides towan Garden ity v < . 5
%‘ Dy koow that Ao the Bephant row ° evg | O anEs o ohe ) Parement games sod activities
stands on the Oford fad roundabant? ® Wog ! @ ¥ E
0. >4 e S enches and pcaic pots
Big Bear trail 27kn ® ®e 4.4
3l Bear Cub trail {7kn .. .. S zﬂm"ﬁﬂ.
e 8 . ° J oy get! J
Aventurous bear b and big bear gp kg for Weoo, (8 ® 1L J
| e canal and the widhife bavers of Chorefielie < d o, ‘. 3
Il waffl “%e9

Evaluation

A team of community evaluators were appointed from the community to facilitate the
engagement of the local population and to ensure their input throughout the project,
into both its inception and evaluation stages. Community evaluators have conducted
community surveys to gather data on a range of self-reported health and wellbeing
outcomes. In addition, automatic pedestrian sensors will capture trip data on walking
and cycling at selected locations.

Outcomes include:

e Physical activity — how many days in the past week were adults physically
active for at least 30 min

e Social aspects of physical activity i.e., whether people do sport or exercise on
their own, with family or as a team/group

e How COVID-19 lockdown has affected people’s level of physical activity

e People’s perceptions of access to an opportunity for physical activity, their
enjoyment and ability to be active

e Wellbeing scores (based on metrics used in national surveys)

10
Page 40



e Perceptions of belonging, trust and resilience

e Pedestrian trips (total and average number of pedestrians per day, counted at
3 separate specified locations, and the difference pre-post intervention — the
counts are registered daily so special events or circumstances can be
assessed

Baseline data were collected between April-June 2021. The survey will be repeated
in Autumn 2021 once the Zoo Trails have been implemented and residents had a
chance to use them. Data analysis will take account of participant demographics and
outcomes will be presented in a way that enables understanding of how these
factors may have influenced the outcomes.

Community feedback

The project has received exceptionally positive response from families, residents and
councillors so far. It has been showcased at several community events with great
anticipation. Installation began on Sept 20™, 2021 and attracted many extremely
positive comments within the day.

17.School Park and Stride

This pilot project is investigating the effectiveness of using wayfinding and promotion
of ‘Park and Stride’ schemes to increase physical activity on journeys to and from
school. The project encourages parents and carers, especially those who normally
drive their children to and from school, to choose an active mode of transport; or to
park a short distance away and walk the last or first stage of their journey. In
addition to providing children with the opportunity to improve their mental and
physical health by incorporating physical activity into their daily routine, this
intervention seeks to reduce air pollution outside of school gates at school drop off
and pick up times.

The aim of the school park and stride project is to increase the proportion of school
children actively travelling to school and the frequency of active travel. It is funded by
Sport England.

Included schools are:
e Sandhill Community Primary School, Headington, Oxford
Tyndale Community School, Cowley, Oxford
St Joseph’s Catholic Primary School, Carterton, West Oxfordshire
Hanwell Fields Community School, Banbury, Oxfordshire
St Blaise CE Primary School, Milton, Oxfordshire

The Park and Stride line markings and signage have been installed at all sites apart
from St Blaise school. This school was a late addition to the pilot and some path
improvement work is required before the line markings can be put down. See below
for some of the line markings installed.

11
Page 41



PARK AND STRADE
VA AT

NV

ot b1 bt

Gitior dhouSiz

Park and Stride Trail Features Follow the bug trail

:
-
<
-
-
-
®

DO YOU KNOW
THE PLANETS ?

Evaluation

We will undertake surveys with parents, staff and pupils to assess mode of travel to
school and perceptions and use of the park and stride routes. In addition, vehicle
and air quality monitoring will be used to assess impacts of the initiative on traffic
volumes and air pollution. This will be combined with a separate qualitative research

study of the intervention, conducted by Oxford Brookes University to contribute to the
overall evaluation.

Baseline data was collected in July 2021, before the end of the school term. A parent
survey will be conducted in November to collect data on travel to school mode to

12
Page 42



determine change in travel mode share, and vehicle and air quality data will be
captured in November also. Longer-term data on travel mode will be collected
approximately 4-6 months later.

Community feedback

Though the park and stride sites have only recently been installed at the time of
writing, there has already been some positive community feedback. Carterton Town
Council received the following email:

“‘Dear Carterton Town Council, | just wanted to compliment you on the new addition
to the park. My children love the solar system artwork on the path around the
bandstand. We make a point of walking that way to and from school. They love
space so this brings a smile to us every morning. Thank you. Kindest regards [local
parent]”

A post by a resident on a local Facebook group for Banbury residents, near the
Hanwell School park and stride, generated several positive comments.
“...I'think it's a fab idea! As you can see my daughter loved them! “

“We saw these too on a walk yesterday. It sparked the children’s interest and wanted
to follow them

“Love seeing it yesterday and yes | followed the steps the same as my kids did
(never to old)”

18.Community Activation

The community activation projects are described briefly, with current status, in
appendix 1.

13
Page 43



Next Steps

1. The evaluation of the Kidlington and Gosford ‘Zoo Trails’ project, the

Oxfordshire schools Park and Stride scheme and the wide-ranging of
Community Activation work is due to be delivered and evaluated over the next
six months and will inform future active travel delivery.

. The County Council Public Health team have secured academic research

resource via the PHIRST programme (Public Health Intervention Responsive
Studies Team) run by the National Institute for Health Research. This
programme provides two dedicated academic experts to design and
undertake an evaluation project with Council officers and partners such as
Active Oxfordshire. Given the wide-ranging measures already being collected,
the PHIRST research will focus on behaviour change and modal shift towards
active travel in market towns, particularly among older adults and commuters.
It will investigate modal shift in this demographic and seek to understand any
barriers for active travel which persist, despite the infrastructure and activation
work, and how these might be overcome.

Equalities implications [considering the impact of the policy/decision/approach on
our customers]

3. Oxfordshire residents with disabilities which impact on their physical mobility

may be less able to take advantage of some these cycling and walking
activation projects. However, they will benefit from the impact of the projects
on air pollution, reduced congestion and increased safety e.g., through fewer
cars parked at school gates. Furthermore, some of the community activation
projects are inclusive for those with disabilities.

. The community activation projects have been designed in partnership with

local residents and specifically aim to reduce inequalities. The target audience
for these projects include older adults experience isolation, children in receipt
of free school meals, children in more deprived wards of Oxford, Bicester
families in the more deprived wards, eligible for FAST (free and reduced cost
physical activity opportunities).

\ Communications

[Has there been any consultation with the public or key stakeholders already, or is
any planned? Do any of the proposed actions need to be communicated in a
particularly sensitive way?]

14

5. Communication with the public and key stakeholders has been a central pillar

of this programme. Consultation with the target audience and establishment of
community networks has been, and continues to be, integral to the Active
Oxfordshire community activation work.

Page 44




6. Future communication with schools needs to manage expectations around
School Streets feasibility and the level of engagement required from the
school community

\ Key Dates

[Include any key dates, especially (a) any target dates and (b) dates for Cabinet
and/or other committees. If the issue is an external one, give any deadlines imposed
by government or partners]

7. The final evaluation report for the Active Travel Programme will be available in
Spring 2022.

Report Authors: Sarah Payne Riches, Public Health, project leads including Josh
Lenthall (Active Oxfordshire), Clare Dowling (Sustrans), Mike Clay, Mark Gregory,
Lucy Bates, Seun Oshinaike (Street Tag), Rosie Rowe (Cycling and Walking
Activation Programme Director).

November 2021
Contact: Rosie Rowe, CWAP Programme Director, Head of Healthy Place Shaping,

Public Health Directorate, Oxfordshire County Council. Email:
Rosie.Rowe@Oxfordshire.gov.uk

15
Page 45



o abed

Appendix 1

Project name

Brief description of project

Windrush Bike Project - Bike Library

A Bike Library based at Windrush Bike project in central Witney where residents
can be referred to receive a free bike and accompanying accessories. For
children who are referred they can swap their bike for a larger bike as they
outgrow it

Wheels for All Witney

An inclusive cycle provision based at Wood Green School. Adapted bikes will be
used to provide cycling opportunities to disabled residents on a regular basis.
This is a volunteer led intervention which has been secured for 12 months with
business plan in place to continue beyond September 2022

Public Bike repair stands

Strategically placed bike repair stands that residents can use to fix or tweak their
cycle whilst in the town centre. These will be maintained by Witney TC
colleagues and the TC have been consulted on the optimum placement

Tea, Talk and Walk

Weekly sessions for older residents who will have a drink/social opportunity
followed by a walk through Cogges Meadow to rebuild confidence in walking,
post lockdowns. This will be both a social isolation prevention project and a
physical activity intervention

StreetTag/Cogges Loyalty scheme

Cogges Café now has a Polytag and also a QR code that rewards repeated visits
to Cogges which is on the Witney Active Travel corridor. After 6 visits, residents
receive a free drink at the café

16

Timescale

w.c. 8th
November



/v obed

Celebration of Cycling

Cyclox with partners Oxfordshire County Council, Oxford City Council, Active
Oxfordshire, Broken Spoke Co-op, and the two universities, is hosting a
Celebration of Cycling in September in Oxford, Witney and Bicester with the aim
of inspiring more people to get pedalling, raising the profile of cycling in
Oxfordshire, and encouraging a move towards healthier transport modes

World Car Free Day Walks

22nd September - walks from Witney Market Square to Cogges

FAST Family Bike scheme and
maintenance

A Bike Library based at Bicester Green where residents can be referred from the
FAST programme to receive a free bike and accompanying accessories. For
children who are referred they can swap their bike for a larger bike as they
outgrow it

Dr Bike

Tactically placed Dr Bike sessions to serve the Bicester West community and
those receiving bikes through the FAST Family Bike scheme

BC Teacher training

British Cycling led training that enables teachers to embed cycling within the
national curriculum before Bikeability so that all children can take up statutory
offer

Breeze rider training

British Cycling led training for women to enable the delivery of guided rides for
other females and beginner female cyclists

Guided ride training

British Cycling led training for men or women to enable the delivery of guided
rides for local residents and families. Will tie into FAST Family Bike scheme by
enabling local rides to take place for residents

Longfield’s School Bike Library

A fleet of 20 bikes for Longfield Primary School and the accompanying
accessories

Aspire Health Walk

A series of wellbeing walks taking place in the Bicester area, with a focus on
being outside and connecting with nature and each other. A guided walk around
somewhere of some interest, followed by refreshments and an opportunity to
chat and socialise

Summer -

Autumn 2021

November 2nd
2021

17



gy abed

Celebration of Cycling

Cyclox with partners Oxfordshire County Council, Oxford City Council, Active
Oxfordshire, Broken Spoke Co-op, and the two universities, is hosting a
Celebration of Cycling in September in Oxford, Witney and Bicester with the aim
of inspiring more people to get pedalling, raising the profile of cycling in
Oxfordshire, and encouraging a move towards healthier transport modes

Bicester Market PolyTag

Incentivising residents to walk to the town market by increasing points available
on the Street Tag app

Liveable Cowley Map

8000 maps were produced and distributed to every household in Cowley to
demonstrate the walkability of the area. This programme was AO funded but
very much in keeping with the ethos of the EATF Community Activation work
and therefore is listed here

Cytech training for TRAX

L1 training for young person from Barton who refurbishes bikes at TRAX for
Ready Set Go and also Bikes for Keyworkers. He, and 2 peers are now
progressing onto Cytech L2 and L3 apprenticeships to further their skills and
employability within the cycling sector

Self-guided walking tour

Designed by local artist and MIND practitioner, Nor Greenhalgh. This will
demonstrate the walkability of the Cowley LTN area whilst inviting residents to
feedback 'soft' insights into their views on the local built environment. My Life
My Choice and Joyriders have already signed up to lead group walks on these
routes and to provide feedback from those with disabilities and from women
who are beginning their active travel journey

OLS Cargo Bike Hire Scheme

Waiting for
OLS, in partnership with Oxford City Council are trialling an E-CARGO Bike loan arrival of e cargo
scheme from Rose Hill Community centre where residents can loan an e-cargo bike but system
bike to go shopping and to run errands thus reducing the need for private all set up and
vehicle use agreement in
place for storage

Ready Set Go

Ready Set Go provides cycles, accessories, tuition, wayfinding and ongoing
support to residents of Blackbird Leys and East Oxford. This is delivered in
partnership with TRAX, Joyriders, WFA Oxford and Broken Spoke

18



WFA will oversee the loan of e-bikes to local residents who want to modally shift

Wheels for All Ebike loan scheme on their daily commute

Wheels for All Tadpole Etrike for This will enable the above to also be open to residents with disabilities or
residents recovering from cardiac balance issues as well as strengthening the fleet of bikes available to regular
issues or with balance difficulties WFA participants

An interactive map of Cowley aimed at children and families that also engages
them in soft consultation about their views of local area and LTNs. Whilst the
main purpose of this is to activate young people this also enables consultation
Children's Map of Cowley with children who can't participate in statutory consultation

Cycle rides connecting riders with shopping and outdoor amenities in their
Joyriders surrounding neighbourhoods and across the city

61 abed

World Car Free Day (22nd, Sept 2021) - to encourage as many staff (students
are not eligible to receive a parking permit) to leave their cars at home and
travel to work by sustainable modes of transport, promoting Oxford Park and
Rides and e-scooters AND 2. Bike Dr (Maintenance, Proficiency Workshops and
Second hand bike Sales) - the workshops will be held over three sessions to
OBU Dr Bike and World Car Free Day | support staff, students and the community to gain a better understanding of

incentivisation bicycle maintenance and improve road safety
Subsidised Bikeabiility training for those living in and around LTN areas, with a
Broken Spoke LTN Bikeability particular focus on women of colour
Broken Spoke Female Mechanic
Pathway A mentoring and qualification pathway for female mechanics

Cyclox with partners Oxfordshire County Council, Oxford City Council, Active
Oxfordshire, Broken Spoke Co-op, and the two universities, is hosting a
Celebration of Cycling in September in Oxford, Witney and Bicester with the aim
of inspiring more people to get pedalling, raising the profile of cycling in
Celebration of Cycling Oxfordshire, and encouraging a move towards healthier transport modes

create a map that shows the safe and pleasant routes to walk or cycle to the
Oxford City Council linking blue and | city’s local parks and waterways; particularly from parts of the city with a higher TBC
green spaces prevalence of health inequalities and low levels of active travel.

19



Page 50

20



HIB 18™ November 2021
Cycling and Walking Activation Programme- Interim evaluation report

Annex 1. Full Results School Streets Project

1. Project description and aims

A School Street limits the motorised traffic outside schools at drop-off and pick-up
times, allowing safer spaces for children and families walking, wheeling, scooting
and cycling. The aim is to create a safe, welcoming and attractive environment
where children, parents and teachers can walk, cycle, scoot or park and walk to
school with less risk of air pollution and traffic congestion.

The School Streets pilot programme in Oxfordshire aims to tackle the congestion,
parking problems, poor air quality and road safety concerns that many school staff,
parents and local residents experience during the school run. The project also
enables physical distancing around the school gates, crucial during the Covid-19
pandemic.

Delivery of the School Streets programme was supported by Sustrans, who have
significant expertise in this field, having implemented School Streets in several other
local authority areas.

In order to identify suitable schools for the pilot programme, the Council launched a
webinar to ask for expressions of interest from schools. They then identified a
shortlist of schools based on location, current engagement levels, support from local
Councillors, geographical spread, and fit with other active travel projects. This was
followed by a desktop analysis of sites, site visits with council and school staff, to
identify nine suitable schools across Oxford, Bicester, Witney and Abingdon to
implement the trial street closures, each for a six-week period. The included schools
are shown in figure 2.1.

The School Streets were managed by Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders
(ETRO), which include a consultation element for local residents. Following
consultation, a map and closure information for the ETRO was produced. Sustrans
staff worked with schools to identify suitable park and stride locations for those
families who needed to travel by car. Alongside this, school representatives were
trained on the Modeshift STARS platform to encourage schools to create a school
travel plan and further engage with promoting and enabling active travel.

The COVID pandemic and subsequent school closures delayed the project slightly.
The first school streets launched in March and the final ones were running to the end
of the summer term in July. See figure 2.2 for the full timeline of the school Streets
project activities.

1. How this was assessed

The main objectives of the pilot School Streets programme were to:

Page 51



HIB 18™ November 2021

Increase the number/percentage of children/parents using active travel
(walking, cycling and scooting) to get to school and back, and increased
frequency of using active travel

Reduce the number/percentage of parents using cars to get their child(ren)
to school and back

Create support for permanent School Streets

Specific to current Covid-19 restrictions- help children/ parents to safely
social distance while travelling to school and back

The main evaluation outcomes were
Rates of active travel and non-active travel

Number of pedestrian or cycling trips, and motorised vehicle trips, during
the school closure times, comparing pre and post closure (‘trip’ monitoring)
Change in air quality (at two sites Windmill School and St Ebbe’s School)
Perceived benefits including physical and social safety, air quality,
enjoyment and general support for School Streets

In addition, a focus group was conducted at one school site, in conjunction with
Coalition of Healthy Streets and Active Travel, to gather information to better
understand the needs and perspectives of car driving parents.

Figure 2.1. Location of School Streets.

Bicester Schools
040 / Bure Park Primary School

oFEN 10
UREA T

oan - Sl St Edburg's C of E

OPEN TO

M LS Primary School
Witney School

Tower Hill Primary School
Oxford Schools

East Oxford Primary
School

St Christopher's Cof E
Primary School

- Windmill Primary School

-Larkrise Primary School

St Ebbes C of E Primary
Nade-en-Thames School

mqa Lo Thai Abingdon School

Farigden —St Nicolas C of E Primary
School

Page 52



€g abed

HIB 18™ November 2021

Figure 2.2. School Streets project timeline.

.
' %> June 2021~

May2021-

Final phase 1a School Street Launch
— St Edburgs (Bicester)- 17"

— Bure Park (Bicester)- 17"

March 2021-

Launch of first phase 1a School Streets
— St Christopher’s Primary (Oxford)- 22
— Windmill Primary (Oxford)- 22

— East Oxford Primary (Oxford)- 29"

Project timeline

| November 2020-
Project inception
i el January 2021-
Covid 19- national
lockdown announced
until after half term.

=X 4 phase 1a schools.
’ |

oy

June 2021~
Phase 1b School Street Launch

& April 2021-
— Larkrise Primary (Oxford)- 7"

Engaging with
® phase 1b schools.

March 2021-

— December 2020- Bicester School

desktop analysis of
road networks. Initial
ETRO submitted.

Initial shortlisting and

July 2020-

Council webinar
about School Streets
and schools invited
to express interest.

Feb 2021-

Finalisation of resources
and training, hiring lead
stewards and recruiting
volunteers for closures.

Baseline surveys launched.

Streets delayed to
after local elections in
May. Planning phase
1b and phase 2
schools. Surveys for

5 residents, parents
s&8 and pupils launched.

Baseline surveys
launched for final
phase 1a schools
and phase 1b
schools.

— St Nicolas Primary (Abingdon)- 8"

May 2021-

Phase 1 schools follow
up data collection.
Engaging with phase 1b
schools and collecting
baseline data.

July 2021- .
Focus group for CoHSAT with St Ebbes
Primary, looking at the needs and
perspectives of car drivers.

Collecting follow up data from all schools.

o




HIB 18™ November 2021

2. Results

This report includes a summary of the comprehensive evaluation undertaken by
Sustrans and OCC on the impact of the School Streets pilot. An in-depth report,
compiled by Sustrans in conjunction with OCC, on the project including additional
charts, technical details of the street closures, ward profile information for School
Streets locations and case studies will be made publicly available in due course.

SURVEY RESULTS — KEY FINDINGS
Travel to school mode.

Over 1,300 baseline surveys and 315 follow up surveys were completed across the
nine sites, reporting travel to school mode via Modeshift STARS. Few schools had
enough data to determine significant findings on a per school basis, therefore,
findings are grouped together across schools (figure 2.3). Before the street closure,
the majority of families either walked or cycled to school (66%), however, a
significant minority (~30%) drove. This reduced over the street closure period to only
22% driving at follow up, with a corresponding 6.2% increase in active travel (a
combination of increases in walking, cycling and scooting). In comparison, results
from a similar project in East Sussex showed a reduction in driving, but with less
increase in active travel and a larger increase in park & stride.

Figure 2.3. Travel mode before and after the street closure.

m Baseline % ® Follow Up % 60.0
o 585
50.0
40.0
29.8
30.0
2.9
20.0
10.5
10.0 73
3.5
0513 I 0513 1505 19 0.10.0
0.0 — - - -
Y < & 2 2 Ny
< fo\'@@ o 4 & o \%\""\&O ‘5@\
8 & S S &
) oS > ¢ il
& AL

Distance from school and convenience were both important influences on choice of
travel mode across all sites, with 43% citing distance from the school as a factor that
impacted their mode of transport and 24.2% mentioning convenience. 17.1% also
said that they selected the faster method of transport.

Page 54



HIB 18™ November 2021

Driver behaviour.

Figure 2.4 indicates that the School Street impacted the behaviour of some families
who typically drove to school before the street closure, with 22% driving less after
the street closure. However, a significant percentage (67%) still drove to school as
frequently as before the street closure.

Figure 2.4. Driving to school behaviour.

How School Streets have impacted driving
to school for families that drive

More
11%

Less
22%

Same
67%

Safety

The majority of parents, teachers and local residents reported that the street felt
safer after the street closures were implemented. Of 116 pupils who responded to
the question, 65% said they felt safter or much safer when walking, cycling or
scooting to school after the school street closure (figure 2.5).

Figure 2.5. Pupils’ perception of street safety.

Pupils: Do you feel safer on your School
Street when you walk/cycle or scoot?

Not sure
27%

A lot less safe
5%

Less safe
3%

A lot safer
40%

25%

Page 55



HIB 18™ November 2021

A quote from one pupil: “I don't dislike anything about the School Street, but | like
how | can cross the road a lot safer without worrying about a car zooming around the
corner” (Bure Park School pupil)

General perceptions about the School Street

General perception survey: 684 adults completed the survey giving a range of

feedback covering the nine sites and all permitted us to share their responses. Of the

444 who provided information about their link to the trial, 2% were teaching staff,

25% were local residents, 40% were parents and the remaining 33% were both

parents and residents.

— 64.2% said their journey through the School Street was their end destination,

25% said it was a stop on their way to work (other responses were mixed
multipurpose journeys)

— 50.3% agreed or strongly agreed that the street was now a more sociable
place than before the closures (21.1% disagreed or strongly disagreed and
the rest said it was the same/ didn’t know)

— 46.9% agreed that the air quality had improved at drop off and pick up times
during the closure (17% disagreed or strongly disagreed and the rest said it
was the same/ didn’t know)

— 40.4% agreed or strongly agreed that the street was a more inclusive place
since the closure (23.5% disagreed or strongly disagreed and the rest said it
was the same/ didn’t know)

— Overall, 46% of adults surveyed disagreed that the surrounding streets were
less congested after the school street closure, 39.5% of those who identified
as parents only; 56.8% of those who identified as residents only; and for those
who said they were both residents and parents, 42.7%.

— 28.7% agreed that the street closures had strengthened relationships in the
local community, whereas a slightly higher 29.5% disagreed or strongly
disagreed (the rest said it was the same/ didn’t know)

Support

Survey respondents overwhelmingly supported the School Streets; 62% ‘yes’
compared to 24% ‘no’ (figure 2.6). Support was highest among parents, and parents
who were also residents. Support was lowest amongst residents but still 46% of
those who stated they were local residents only (i.e., not parents also), were in
support of the school street, with 41% not in support. For comparison, a consultation
survey for Low Traffic Neighbourhoods in one area of Oxford, found 44% were
supportive and 33% against.

Overall, 54% of survey respondents said they wanted the School Streets to
continue beyond the six-week trial as they were, and a further 10.5% said they
wanted them to continue with some changes. Only 25% did not want them to
continue, and 9.2% were unsure.

6
Page 56



HIB 18™ November 2021
Figure 2.6 Support for School Streets.
Do you support the School Street Closures?

No
24%

Not sure
Yes 12%

62%

Other
2%

Summary of focus group findings

Focus Group- 2

Perspectives and needs of car driving families

Affects of Covid-19

A recurring theme among participants was how their travel has
changed as a result of the pandemic.

Redundancies and job changes meant that parents were now working
from home or alternate parents were dropping off children at school.

Due to reduced travel during lockdowns parents found it easier and

quicker to drive as there was a reduction in traffic.
One parent noted how toll bridge staff being removed has significantly
shortened his journey to the city.

Staggered drop off imings made the school run more restrictive and
compressed the window of ime parents could arrive at school
Participants perceived the School Street to have been implementad
with bad timing when families were already having other issues to deal
th &5 & result of the pandemi

ves of driving
Gives flexibilit amilies to man; wd family time
Allows parents to do the school run quickly and drive onto work

Families are able to maintain a reasonal routing in the daytime
1 their family time

It can be the only option for famili
of the school

Time saving
Some parents need to

Page 57



HIB 18™ November 2021

VEHICLE TRAFFIC

Data was collected during the defined closure period for three of the School Streets
schools over five weekdays for Bure Park, East Oxford and St Edburgs; nine
weekdays for Windmill and 10 weekdays for St Christophers school. Baseline data
was collected in March 2021, typically the week before a street closure was
implemented and follow up data recorded between four and six weeks after the
timed street closure was implemented (late April 2021). Follow up data for control
sites was recorded in the same time period as for street clsoure sites but no street
closure was implemented during this time. Counts were combined for the morning
timed closure period and separately for the afternoon closure period.

There was significant variation in walking and cycling counts by school site,
therefore, results are presented mostly at school level with some data combined to
explore the differece between street closure walking and cyling counts compared to
control schools. Mean daily counts are shown in Table 2.2.

Two School Streets schools increased their walking and cyling trips while one,
Windmill school, saw a decrease, as did both the control schools. Mean daily walking
and cyling by school are shown in Figure 2.7 (morning street closure). A similar
patterns was found for the afternoon closure period. Percentage change in walking
by school for the morning closure period, is shown in Figure 2.8. The pattern and
magnitude is similar for the afternoon period.There was a small mean increase in
morning daily walking counts and cycling counts across the combined group of
schools with street closures, compared to a mean decrease across control schools
(Figure 2.9).

Table 2.2. Average daily walking and cycling counts by school

School Walking Walking | Difference | Cycling Cycling | Difference

(Baseline) | (Follow (Baseline) | (Follow
up) up)

St

Christopher’s | 99 165 66 28 58 30

AM 102 164 62 31 37 6

PM

wWindmill

AM 537 469 -68 34 41 7

PM 898 764 -134 38 46 8

East Oxford

AM 101 109 8 29 34 5

PM 98 118 20 15 29 14

St Edburg’s

(control)

AM 205 136 -69 4 3 -1

PM 192 115 =77 3 5 2

Bure Park

(control) 502 482 -20 5 5 0

AM 585 562 -23 9 5 -4

PM

8

Page 58



HIB 18™ November 2021

Figure 2.7. Average daily walking and cycling counts (morning) by school
comparing baseline to follow up.

Average daily walking and cycling counts by school, morning street closure time

600

400

200

Baseline FU Baseline FU Baseline FU Baseline FU Baseline FU
Bure (control) EastOx StChris StEdburgs (control) Windmill

‘ B mean daily walking count [l mean daily cycling count ‘

Figure 2.8. Percentage change in walking (am) across all schools

Change (%) in daily walking counts (morning) from baseline to follow up, all schools

40

20

N -

-20

-40

Bure (control) EastOx StChris  StEdburgs (control) Windmill

Page 59



HIB 18™ November 2021

Figure 2.9. Comparison of School Streets walking and cycling, with control school.

Change in walking and cycling counts (am) baseline to follow up comparing school streets to controls

LLII

Baseline Followup Baseline Followup

200 300 400
1 1 |

100
|

School streets Control schools
|_ mean daily walking count [l mean daily cycling count ‘

At St Christopher’s School and Windmill School, counts of vehicles were captured as
well as cyclists and pedestrians. At both locations, a decrease in car counts at follow
up was noted, both during the morning drop-off period and afternoon pick-up period
(figures 2.10 and 2.11). Car count recorded at St Christophers School, for 10
weekdays at baseline and following up, showed a mean of 156 cars at baseline and
140 at followup (reduction of 16) during the morning street closure; and a mean of
165 at afternoon closure at baseline compared to 131 at follow up (a reduction of
34).

Figure 2.10. Average daily walking, cycling and car counts at St Christophers.

o

=

(o]

Qo

m —

o

=3

o

(V]

O 4

Baseline Followup Baseline Followup
AM total PM total
B ean daily walkers [ mean daily cyclists
B mean daily cars
10

Page 60



HIB 18™ November 2021

Figure 2.11. Average daily walking, cycling and car counts at Windmill School.

Average daily morning and afternoon walking, cycling and car counts, Windmill School

400 600 800 1,000
1 | 1

200
|

Baseline Followup Baseline Followup
AM total PM total

B rean daily walking Bl mean daily cycling
I mean count of cars

AIR QUALITY

Data on air quality is currently being analysed and will be included in the final Cycling
and Walking Activation Programme report.

3. Conclusions

Across all schools, there was general support for School Streets. The impact on
travel to school mode was beneficial, with an overall decrease in travel by car and an
increase in walking and cycling. However, too few surveys on travel mode were
completed in the follow up period, after the closures were in place, for any robust
findings per school or to understand differences in the impact in different schools.

Several schools have decided to continue running the School Street however,
volunteer capacity is an issue for many schools. For these to be sustainable in the
long term, permanent signage and camera enforcement is required to limit the
reliance on volunteer stewards to man the closure points. Some schools. At one
school, Bure Park in Bicester, the pilot raised issues among residents, resulting in
the discontinuation of the School Street. Despite a lot of positive feedback, the road
was a major route into and out of the nearby estate and it became clear that ETRO
consultation and communications hadn’t reached far enough for residents to feel
informed and engaged with the project. The School Street will be put on hold to
gather more resident feedback and to explore alternative infrastructure design
solutions to address the congestion issues.

11
Page 61



HIB 18™ November 2021

Annex 2. Full Results Street Tag

2. Project description and aims
Street Tag is a feely available app that aims to encourage communities to be more
active in the targeted areas by getting families to spend more time outdoors taking
part in physical activities, driving community engagement, and maintaining positive
mental health. It has the potential to increase population levels of physical activity.
Virtual tags are placed in popular walking routes and areas with green space to
encourage participatory and physical activities. App users can choose to walk, run or
cycle to virtual tags’ which are placed on the apps interface. Users collect ‘points’ for
collecting tags. Once users are near or within a 40metre radius of a tag, the player
receives the point; each tag being worth an average 10 points per tag. In Oxfordshire
the Street Tag project was targeted towards families focussing particularly on
schools.
Two competitions were organised: one for primary schools where families collected
tags (points) for their school and a community competition. Each district in
Oxfordshire had a separate leader board for its primary schools with the top three
schools on the leader board in each district in each school term receiving a prize and
the chance to participate in a county wide ‘Street Tag School Games Final’ in the
summer term. There was a Cherwell Community leader board as the district council
had already started to pilot the app and another community leader board for the
other districts and Oxford City. The winners of each season received activity related
prizes.

Aims
1) To encourage children and parents to be more active through gamification
2) To embed regular physical activity on a daily basis for children, parents and
the wider community

4. How this was assessed
The primary objectives of the Street Tag project were to encourage residents in
Oxfordshire to participate in more physical activity, including more time per week
spent being physically active and increased frequency of physical activity.
Other objectives included.

e To make walking more enjoyable through the Street Tag app

e To enable targeted groups to realise the physical and social benefits of
walking

e To engage schools in Street Tag using school league tables

e To increase the number of walking journeys to school

e To determine the impact Street Tag has on active travel

Data was captured by a participant completed survey, administered through the
Street Tag app. Participants were required to complete a set of survey questions at
registration (baseline survey) and then requested to complete this again at the end of
each month (follow-up survey). This survey assessed physical activity in three
categories: walking; cycling; and sport or other activity or dance. Demographic
characteristics of respondents including age, ethnicity and gender were also
collected. The Street Tag survey questions on physical activity mirror those in the

12
Page 62



HIB 18™ November 2021

validated Sport England Active Lives Survey. Data on use of the app is recorded
automatically within the app, providing measures of the number of points collected,

location used, time of day and usage over the week and month.

Data was captured over the following time periods:
e 10th August 2020 to 13th July 2021 for the Cherwell Community leader board
e 20th October 2020 to 31st July 2021 for the Oxfordshire Community leader
board (this includes residents from South Oxfordshire, Vale of White House,
West Oxfordshire districts, Oxford City, and some Cherwell District residents
who were not aware of the separate Cherwell community leader board.
e 5th October 2020 to 15th July 2021 for all school leader boards.

5. Results

Survey responses

A total of 9995 users were registered on Street Tag app during the specified periods,
and 8630 users completed the baseline survey. In total, 4076 unique users
completed the subsequent follow up survey at month one, and 2156 unique users
completed the subsequent follow up survey at month two.

Number of distinct users per survey

Schools’ leader boards Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3
(at sign up on (end of month (end of month 3)
app) 2)

Cherwell (School) 1640 771 385

South Oxfordshire schools 982 475 227

Vale of White House schools | 610 284 140

West Oxfordshire schools 886 422 220

Oxfordshire Schools Finals 3010 1816 1071

Community leader boards

Cherwell (Community) 303 90 46

Oxfordshire 1199 218 67

Demographics of survey respondents

Ethnicity

A total of 2658 of the 8630 (31%) baseline survey respondents shared their ethnicity.
Most users were of White British ethnicity (95%) and the least represented ethnic
group are the Black, Asian and minority ethnic group. This is the same narrative
across other locations where Street Tag has been deployed and not only peculiar to

the Oxfordshire project.

13

Page 63




HIB 18™ November 2021

Age

A total of 1292 participants (15%) shared their age. Respondents were segmented
into age categories- 0-12, 13-25, 26-38, 39-60, 60-74 and over 75. Across all leader
boards, the highest numbers of app users were in the age groups 39-60 (32.66%)
and 0-12 (29.41%).

The least represented age category was the 75+. In the community leader boards,
the highest number of participants were in the 26-38yr age group. Due to the low
percentage of survey respondents who shared their age, this may not be
representative of all app users.

Gender

A total of 5725 of the respondents (66%) provided their gender. There were more
females than male respondents that registered on the Street Tag app, 56.75% of the
respondents who reported their gender were females while 42.34% were male. A
small proportion of users chose the gender option “other”.

Deprivation

Though no measure of deprivation was captured in the Street Tag baseline or follow
up surveys, it is worth noting that nine of the schools signed up to the Schools leader
board were in the top 10 most deprived wards in Oxfordshire, demonstrating the
ability of this initiative to achieve some penetration into relatively more deprived
communities.

Main outcomes
Summary

Overall, the users of the Street Tag app who completed the follow up surveys,
reported an increase in frequency and duration of both cycling and walking. There
was some variation across the school and community leader boards and for some
outcomes, the improvements were small. However, there was a clear trend showing
a beneficial impact for most outcomes.

For walking outcomes in particular, baseline levels of physical activity were higher
than average for Oxfordshire. Public Health England data (captured via Sport
England’s Active Lives Survey) indicates that in Oxfordshire 73% of adults do at
least 150 minutes of physical activity per week (an average of 30 min per day for 5
days)!. This includes all types of activity, walking, cycling, sport, fitness, dance and
gardening. In comparison between 75-80% of respondents in the age groups
spanning 26-74 years, reported doing more than this amount of walking alone each
day at baseline. This may indicate a selection bias where more active individuals
engage with the app.

Furthermore, given the 47% follow up rate at month 2, and 25% follow up at survey
month 3, response bias is possible, with more active users who have engaged
significantly with the app being more likely to complete the follow up survey; and

1 https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/physical-
activity/data#page/3/gid/1938132899/pat/15/par/E92000001/ati/202/are/E09000002/iid/93014/age/29
8/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/car-do-0

14
Page 64



HIB 18™ November 2021

those who have not increased their physical activity opting not to complete the
survey. However, a review of users’ activity (using Street tag at least 3 times)
showed that this is comparable between users who completed the follow up surveys
and those who didn't.

It is worth noting that the number of respondents at follow up 2, may have resulted in
small numbers of respondents for some questions when separated into separate
leader boards.

Demographic data captured in the surveys shows a wide age range engaging with
the app apart from the older generation — which could be anticipated given the wider
lack of engagement with health and wellbeing apps in older adults. The gender split
was towards more females than males and there was a lack of engagement with
ethnic groups other than White British.

Walking — key results
Walking at least 10 min, at least once in the past 7 days (figure 3.1)

- Baseline levels of walking for 10 min at least once a week were high (typically
=>90%) among the 8,629 people who reported this at baseline.

- There was a small increase in this outcome from baseline to follow up at
month 2, among respondents from all leader boards (a total of 4,064
responded). A total of 2,137 responded to the survey at month 3, and this
increase compared with baseline was maintained for Cherwell Schools,
Oxfordshire Schools, and Vale of the White Horse Schools, ranging from a
baseline to final follow up change of between 4% and 8%. There was a drop
from the first follow up survey to the second for South Oxfordshire and West
Oxfordshire schools where the percentage completing a 10 min walk at least
once a day returned nearly to baseline levels (figure 3.1).

- Inthe community leader boards, there was an increase in walking at least
once a week for 10 min or more in both leader boards, ranging from 5% to 8%
increase from baseline to final follow up, again from a high baseline level.

Number of days walked at least 10 min (figure 3.2).

- At baseline, 7819 reported how many days, in the last 7 days, they did a
walk lasting at least ten minutes, with approximately half this many
responding at follow up 1.

- In the community leader boards, the percentage of respondents who walked
at least 10 mins on 6 or 7 days a week increased from baseline to follow up
and there was a corresponding decrease in the percentage who walked only
once per week (figure 3.2).

- There was a similar pattern in schools with as much as an increase of 12%
points for walking 7 days per week in West Oxfordshire schools. The biggest
decreases were in walking on 2 or 3 days per week, which fell over the
evaluation period in all schools.

- Across the leader boards, there was a notable increase in the percentage of
respondents walking for more than 4 days from baseline to final follow up.

15
Page 65



HIB 18™ November 2021

Figure 3.1. Percentage of respondents who have done a continuous walk for at
least 10 min, at least once in the past 7 days, for Street Tag school respondents

In the past 7 days, have you done a continuous walk lasting at least 10 minutes?- Schools
@No @Yes

89.80%

10.20%

2.11%
Survey 3 Survey 1 Su
Vale of White Horse West Oxfordshire

Survey 1

Survey 3 Survey 1

Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3 Survey 1 Survey
Oxfordshire Schools- Finals South Oxfordshire

Survey 3
Cherwell Schools

Figure 3.2. Number of days, in the last 7 days, they did a walk lasting at least ten
minutes-Community leader board

days did you do a walk lasting at least ten minutes?-Communi

01020304 058607

100%

20%

Survey 1 Survey 2

Survey 3 Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3

Cherwell Community Oxfordshire

16
Page 66



HIB 18™ November 2021

Time spent walking per day

- Between 73-78% of those in the schools’ leader board reported walking more
than 30 mins per day (figure 3.3). Between 8-11% reported walking more than
60 min per day at baseline.

- The percentage of respondents who reported doing less than 30 min per day
dropped in all school leader boards from baseline to final follow up, in some
cases almost 10% (range 5% to 10%).

Figure 3.3. Time spent walking per day, schools’ leader board

How much time did you usually spend walking?- Schools

100% ®0<30
121180
®181<240
0241>
@31<60

80% 0612120

60% 50.80%

40%

20%

0%

Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3 Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3 Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3 Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3 Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3
Cherwell Sehools Oxfordshire Sehools- Finals South Oxfordshire Vale of White Horse West Oxfordshire

Walking- by demographic

- Most changes were replicated similarly when viewed in age or gender
categories. However, fewer males had completed a 10 min walk in the past
week than females at baseline (85% compared to 93%) and there was a more
dramatic increase at final follow up (an increase of 10% compared to only
0.5% in females).

- By age, the proportion of those aged 13-25 and 26-38 who did at a continuous
10 min walk at least once dropped from baseline to follow up, whereas in
other age groups, this proportion increased.

- Bearing in mind that only 15% of respondents reported their age so these
numbers may be small, particularly for follow up surveys.

17
Page 67



HIB 18™ November 2021

Cycling - key results

Cycling for 10 min at least once in the last 7 days

- Far fewer respondents reported cycling at least 10 min on at least one day in
the past week (around a quarter in the community leader boards), compared
to walking.

- The percentage of respondents who did cycle at least once, was between 18-
24% at baseline. This increased in some schools and decreased in others
from baseline to final follow up. This was similar in the community, with
Oxfordshire community residents showing an increase from 23% cycling at
least once per week to 30%; and Cherwell community residents reporting a
decrease from 26% to 22%.

Time spent cycling per day
- The percentage of respondents who reported doing less than 30 min cycling
per day declined from baseline to final follow up, and a higher percentage of
respondents did between 31-120 mins of cycling per day

Figure 3.4. Time spent cycling per day, for Street Tag school respondents

How much time did you usually spend cycling?
100% 90<30
@®121<180
®181<240
®241>
@®31<60

80% ®61<120

25.00%

60%

40%

20%

o%

Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3 Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3 Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3 Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3 Survey 1 Survey 2 Survey 3
Cherwell Schools Oxfordshire Schools- Finals South Oxfordshire Vale of White Horse West Oxfordshire

18
Page 68



HIB 18™ November 2021

Figure 3.5. Time spent cycling per day, for Street Tag community respondents

100% ®0<30

®121<180
®181<240
o241
®31<60

8o% ®61<120

Survey 2
Cherwell Community

Cycling - by demographic.

- The percentage of males who had done a cycle ride for more than 10 min at
least once in the past week was higher than females, at baseline (Males: 26%
Females:16%) and all follow up points (final follow up, Males: 31% females:
19%).

- The app was more successful in increasing cycling rates in males than
females.

Sport, fitness activity or dance — key results

Sport or fitness at least once in the past 7 days

- The percentage of participants who reported doing sport, fithess or dance at
least once a week for 10 min or more at baseline (out of 8,630 respondents),
was between 38-45% in the school leader board (figure 3.6) and 28% to 33%
in the community. This is higher than for cycling but still substantially less than
for walking.

- Of note, in all the leader boards this percentage decreased from baseline to
follow up or stayed the same (4064 respondents at first follow up and 2137 at
final follow up).

- The main evaluation period of Street Tag was over the Autumn and Winter
COVID-19 lockdown restrictions. Restrictions would have had a greater
impact on sport, fitness and other activities such as dance which would have
been required to close or limit numbers during this period, whereas walking
and cycling activities would have been less affected.

- Further, given the focus of Street Tag on walking and cycling, it is possible
that Street Tag led to a switch of activity type in some participants, with an
increase in walking and a decrease in sport or fitness rather than an overall
increase in physical activity.

19
Page 69



HIB 18™ November 2021

Figure 3.6. At least 10 min of sport fitness or dance in the past 7 days, for Street Tag
school respondents

or dance? at least 10 minutes?- Schools

Time spent doing sport, fithess or dance per day

The percentage of respondents participating in sport, fithess, or dance
between for more than 30 min per day, increased from the baseline survey to
follow up, across several of the leader boards with the biggest increase in the
Cherwell Community Leader board (10% increase) but other leader boards
(e.g., Oxfordshire community and Cherwell School) showed a decrease.

Street Tag use and activity

20

A total of 8365 unique users participated in the Oxfordshire leader boards for
the period under review from October 2020 to May 2021.

Street Tag was used much more for walking and cycling than for Sport, fithess
or dance activities.

Activity recorded on Street Tag was highest in winter months and participation
was consistent over the week and weekend with minimal difference across
the 7 days, apart from a slight dip on Mondays in all leader boards.

Activity peaked between 7am to 8am and 3pm to 5pm, it is also noted that an

appreciable percentage of users also participate in activities between 11am
and 12pm with roughly between 6-9% of users participating.

Page 70



Health Improvement Board
18t Nov 2021

Cycling and Walking Activation
Programme

Interim evaluation report

Report Authors: Sarah Payne Riches, Public Health, project leads including Josh
Lenthall (Active Oxfordshire), Clare Dowling (Sustrans), Mike Clay, Mark
Gregory, Lucy Bates, Seun Oshinaike (Street Tag)

OXFORDSHIRE
CWAP Programme Director: Rosie Rowe, Head of Healthy Place Shaping COUNTY COUNCIL




Objectives of the C&W Activation
Programme

To increase the proportion of people who regularly walk or cycle in Oxfordshire
by promoting modal shift to active travel

To increase the proportion of people who feel safe when walking or cycling,
including on journeys to school

To reduce inequalities in active travel (including geographical inequalities and
those by age, gender, ethnicity, and socio-economic status)

To identify and understand the barriers to walking and cycling, including hyper-
local barriers

To build local capacity to address these barriers
To reduce carbon and air pollution emissions across the network

w9 OXFORDSHIRE
&% COUNTY COUNCIL




Interim evaluation

Completed projects Ongoing

4
g School Streets « Community Activation

« Schools Park and Stride

dP Street Tag

* Kidlington ‘Zoo Trails’

Communications
< campaign




School Streets

O schools (5 Oxford city, 2 Bicester, 1 Witney 1 Abingdon)

6-week pilot, road closures using ETRO and volunteers
manning closure points for am drop off period and pm
pick up

Aim - to increase % using active travel and decrease
% driving

Objective also to create support for permanent school
streets

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL



Average daily walking, cycling and car counts at St Christopher’s,

SC h OOI Stre from baseline to follow up

Do you support the School Street Closures®

No

Not sure
12% Baseline Followup Baseline Followup
AM total PM total
Other

29 I rcan daily walkers I mean daily cyclists
I mean daily cars

Travel mode before and after street closure

Pupils: Do you feel safer on your School
Street when you walk/cycle or scoot?

= Baseline % Follow Up %

Not sure
27%

A lot less safe
5%

Less safe
3%

A lot safer
40%

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL




Street Tag

!.l"‘-n"'h' Chordikisr & L |I

n [

Cherwell !Oxon (finals): South Ox. ! Vale : West

el




Community Activation — Witney, Bicester &
Oxford

Community Activation measures are intended to complement
infrastructure measures being taken in Witney, Bicester and Oxford

Headline figures

Bicester (£25,000 allocated)

Target engagement: 495 residents

Residents engaged to date: 193

%)% working age adults - 20% Primary School aged children

(%Nitney (E25,000 allocated)
arget engagement: 400 residents
%sidents engaged to date:181
18% older adults - 32% working age adults — 50 % Primary School aged
children

Oxford (£25,000 allocated)

Target engagement: 600 residents

Residents engaged to date:194

80% working age adults — 20 % Primary School aged children

Examples of Community Activation
projects

Bike Libraries

Cycle tuition

‘Walk, Talk & Tea’ for shielding
populations

StreetTag incentivisation linked to
businesses and markets

Dr Bike sessions

Training community members as ride
leaders

Mental Health focused walking groups
Community based E-Cargo bike hire
schemes

Inclusive cycling provision i.e. Wheels for

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL




School Park and Stride

Creating Park and Stride/Wayfinding routes to primary
schools from nearby car parks or residential areas

A pilot project in four schools across Oxfordshire-routes
and activities designed with parents and children
implemented in October 2021

The routes will be marked with ‘signs and lines’ to be easy
to follow and add a little fun — see some examples of the
signs and lines that have been installed

Extra Joy — Where we can extra activities such as ground
painted games, bug hotels and activity stations will be
Installed

Schools supported to implement walking buses

Option to include classroom-based air quality activities

SANDHILLS

PRIMARY SCHOOL

STJOSER": TATHOLIC
PRIMARY SCHOOL

; \\?}‘\” H&/ n f‘\w 1

DRAWN BY [Vt ~—

BY MAKING IT AS.
LONG AS I CAN.

&
Smive  SHOORDsRE

u Parking - Free car
park or considerately
on the street
T Fingerpost sign
|  oirectional bollard

Pavement games and
activities

R O souril
]

S ]
__5‘2 0 Stepping stones




Kidlington Zoo Tralls

Objective to increase physical activity in primary school aged children — ‘Walking for health’
— Funded by Sport England and the National Lottery

Creating 5 wayfinding routes throughout Kidlington, connecting all the local schools, many
hidden green spaces and parks, shops and residential areas around the central hub of
Exeter Hall. Ranging in length from 1.5km to 5km. Pathway barriers safely removed to
allow access for all users.

Easy to follow trails marked with bespoke signs and pawprints on the ground with fun hop-
scotch and fitness type elements in safe alleys and on park paths.

Community Evaluators appointed from the community to facilitate the engagement of the
local population and to ensure their input throughout the project, into both its inception and
evaluation stages.

Exceptionally positive response from families, residents and councillors.

SEE Swrtats

“1;:.
!
i\

x
Y gl wdraturestos

+STOMP_LIKE e NFRGY e
AN ELEPHM‘“ ?g;:::ww

"2 donhrmswelos —
| 5 o ony




Key Learning
for School Streets and Street Tag

School Streets to be offered as part of a suite of resources
as appropriate for the school; Schools need to self-
nominate, have a commitment to active travel promotion
and a vested interest in improving the safety of active travel
journeys to school

Engagement with schools leads to tailored solutions
Specific requirements on schools identified through this pilot

Implementing a one-day trial, to prepare for a longer six-week
trial could be encouraged. May help with parent engagement
and identification of barriers?

Street Tag — to achieve participation by more ethnic minority
residents and older adults.

w9 OXFORDSHIRE
&% COUNTY COUNCIL




Objectives of the Activation programme
How are we doing so far...?

To increase the proportion of people who regularly walk or cycle in Oxfordshire
by promoting modal shift to active travel ***

To increase the proportion of people who feel safe when walking or cycling,
including on journeys to school ***

To reduce inequalities in active travel (including geographical inequalities and
those by age, gender, ethnicity, and socio-economic status) ***

To identify and understand the barriers to walking and cycling, including hyper-

local barriers ***

To build local capacity to address these barriers **ik

To reduce carbon and air pollution emissions across the network *71‘,(7,’1{

OXFORDSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 12

| Health Improvement Board |

18th November 2021

Strategic update for Domestic Abuse

Purpose/ Recommendation

1. HIB members are asked to

¢ Note the update on statutory duties under the Domestic Abuse Action following
publication of guidance for Part 4 of the Domestic Abuse Act
Note the publication of draft safe accommodation strategy for consultation
Note for timetable for strategy development

| Executive Summary |

2. The Domestic Abuse Act 2021 (“the Act’) was introduced in April 2021, and statutory
duties came into force on 15t October 2021. The statutory guidance highlights the
specific scope and contents for the safe accommodation strategy, which is required
under the Act. An overarching needs assessment and strategy is currently being
worked on in Oxfordshire. However, to ensure we could meet the Act requirements,
Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Strategic Board published separate draft Safe
Accommodation Strategy, which is currently out for consultation.

Background

3. This paper is to update the Health Improvement Board, following the publication of
the statutory guidance outlining the local authorities’ duties under the Domestic
Abuse Act, and is an addition to the HIB update given in September 21.

4. The Domestic Abuse Act 2021 was introduced in April this year. It requires each tier
one local authority to lead a strategic board consisting of membership from a range
of organisations from the system, including tier two local authorities. The local
authority and strategic board are required to organise a local needs assessment with
the following scope: “comprehensive assessment of need for support in safe
accommodation in your area”, and then use this to inform a safe accommodation
strategy.

5. Statutory guidance from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
(DLUHC) for English local authorities on their functions pursuant to Part 4 of the
2021 Domestic Abuse Act (“the Act’) was published on 1st October 2021, when the
duty came into force.

Delivery of support to victims of domestic abuse in domestic abuse safe
accommodation services - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

1
Page 83



6. A grant of £1.1million has been awarded by MHCLG (nhow known as DLUHC) to
OCC for delivery of the duties under this Act. Further grants have been awarded to
tier two local authorities.

7. Work is currently underway to develop a needs assessment and strategy review with
a wider remit than the stated requirement around safe accommodation. This work is
being undertaken by an external Public Health agency, PHAST, and is supported by
a local expert, to ensure the strategy reflects a good understanding the Oxfordshire
system.

| Key Issues

8. Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation Strategy
Following the publication of the statutory guidance for Part 4 of the Act, which
provided details of the required scope and content of the “domestic abuse support in
safe accommodation” strategy, and use of MHCLG funding, the Oxfordshire
Domestic Abuse Strategic Board agreed to publish a separate strategy to meet these
requirements.

9. The Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation Strategy was produced in draft on 26t
October 2021, and is currently under consultation according to the guidance, which
states “Tier one authorities must consult with the Board, tier two authorities within the
area and such other persons as they consider appropriate, before publishing their
strategy.”

10.The consultation is live from 27th October to 24th November 2021.

https://letstalk.oxfords hire.gov.uk/domestic-ab use-safe-accommodation-strateqy-2021

11.The delivery plan for the safe accommodation strategy will developed by the Safe
Accommodation Working Group’ (SAWG) and approved by the Oxfordshire
Domestic Abuse Strategic Board in 2021/22. This will include developing and
agreeing baseline measures and targets to monitor the impact of the Oxfordshire
Domestic. This will also work to address the gaps in data which have been
highlighted in the needs assessment.

| Budgetary implications

12.The funding allocation from MHCLG (DLUHC) of £1.1 million should be used to
support the implementation of the statutory duties, as defined in the guidance. The
publication of the guidance has provided clarity on the scope of activities that can be
funded. Discussions are in progress between tier 1 and tier 2 local authorities, to
ensure the funding is distributed appropriately.

| Equalities implications [considering the impact of the policy on our customers]

2
Page 84


https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/domestic-abuse-safe-accommodation-strategy-2021

13.The Act states there should be dedicated provision of specialist support for people
with protected characteristics, or needs in drug and alcohol, mental health, physical
health, interpreting, and specialist counselling.

| Sustainability implications

14.No sustainability implications arise from this paper.

| Risk Management

Risk

Action

Data: The safe accommodation needs
assessment highlighted the difficulty in
collecting data which helps to identify
specific need.

The Safe Accommodation Working Group,
will be tasked with identifying and addressing
this challenge.

Delivery: Following publication of the
guidance, providing clear scope for use of
the MHCLG funding, there is a very short
timeframe to allocate and spend the
funding.

Further discussions are being held to allocate
funding from tier 1 to tier 2.

Short timeframe flagged with MHCLG, and
clarity requested on future funding plans.

| Communications

15.In the development of the needs assessment, a number of interviews have been
conducted to understand views from different stakeholders. Outcomes of these have
been included in the safe accommodation strategy.

16.The safe accommodation strategy is currently out to consultation on the OCC “Let’s

Talk” portal.

Key Dates

26t October 2021 — Draft Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Support in Safe Accommodation
strategy published, for consultation with tier 2 local authorities, the Domestic Abuse
Strategic Board and other relevant stakeholders.

5t January 2022 — Final Domestic Abuse Support in Safe Accommodation strategy

published.

January 2022 — Draft overarching Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Strategy put out for

consultation.

March 2022 — Final overarching Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Strategy published.

3
Page 85




Report by Kate Holburn, Head of Public Health Programmes
Contact Officer Kate Holburn, Head of Public Health Programmes,
kate.holburn@oxfordshire.gov.uk 07825 052768

November 2021

4
Page 86


mailto:kate.holburn@oxfordshire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	6 Note of Decision of Last Meeting
	8 Performance Report
	9 Mental Health & Wellbeing: Update from Suicide Prevention Multi Agency Group
	10 Report from the Healthwatch Oxfordshire Ambassador
	11 Active Travel Programme
	Item 11.2 - Annex 1. Full Results School Streets Project
	Item 11.3 - Active travel Presentation

	12 Domestic Abuse Support- Safer Accommodation

